
  
 
 
 
 
 

TENTATIVE AGENDA & MEETING NOTICE 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

TUESDAY, MARCH 21, 2017 
5:30 P.M. 

WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 
COMMISSIONERS' BOARD ROOM 

 
 
TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 

     

5:30 1  CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER   
 2  APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

March 7, 2017, Regular Meeting 
March 7, 2017, Closed Session 

 1 

 3  APPROVAL OF THE MARCH 21, 2017 AGENDA  9 
5:35 4  PUBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON PROPOSED 

AMENDMENTS TO THE WATAUGA COUNTY SIGN ORDINANCE 
MR. JOE FURMAN 11 

5:40 5  VAYA HEALTH FY 2016 AUDIT REPORT MS. JENNIFER TERNAY 15 
5:45 6  REQUEST FOR USE OF COUNTY SPACE FOR WEEKDAY 

FARMERS’ MARKET 
MS. CAROL COULTER 73 

5:50 7  COOPERATIVE EXTENSION UPDATE MR. EDDY LABUS 75 
5:55 8  BOARD OF EQUALIZATION AND REVIEW SCHEDULE MR. LARRY WARREN 77 
6:00 9  MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A. Proposed Contract for Public Safety and Emergency 
Communications Systems Comprehensive Study  

B. Proposed Proclamation Naming April 1, 2017, As 
Watauga County Seed Library Day 

C. Out-of-State Travel Requests  
D. Boards and Commissions 
E. Announcements 

MR. DERON GEOUQUE  
81 

 
95 

 
99 

111 
149 

6:05 10  PUBLIC COMMENT  152 
7:05 11  BREAK  152 
7:10 12  CLOSED SESSION 

Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
Land Acquisition – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(5)(i) 

 152 

7:30 13  ADJOURN   
 



AGENDA ITEM 2: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
March 7, 2017, Regular Meeting  
March 7, 2017, Closed Session 
 
 
 
 
 
  

032117 BCC Meeting

1



MINUTES 
 

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
TUESDAY, MARCH 7, 2017 

 
The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting, as scheduled, on Tuesday, 
March 7, 2017, at 8:30 A.M. in the Commissioners' Board Room of the Watauga County 
Administration Building, Boone, North Carolina. 
 

  PRESENT: John Welch, Chairman 
    Billy Kennedy, Vice-Chairman 
    Jimmy Hodges, Commissioner 
    Larry Turnbow, Commissioner 

Perry Yates, Commissioner 
Anthony di Santi, County Attorney 

    Deron Geouque, County Manager 
    Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 

Chairman Welch called the meeting to order at 8:31 A.M. 
 
Commissioner Yates opened with prayer and Vice-Chairman Kennedy led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Chairman Welch called for additions and/or corrections to the February 16 & 17, 2017, special 
meeting minutes, February 21, 2017, regular and closed session minutes, and February 28, 2017, 
special meeting minutes. 
 
Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to approve the 
February 16 & 17, 2017, special meeting minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to approve the 
February 21, 2017, regular meeting minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to approve the 
February 21, 2017, closed session minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 

DRAFT 

032117 BCC Meeting

2



Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to approve the 
February 28, 2017, special meeting minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Chairman Welch called for additions and/or corrections to the March 7, 2017, agenda. 
 
County Manager Geouque requested to add Land Acquisition, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(5)(i), to 
the scheduled closed session. 
 
Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to approve the 
March 7, 2017, agenda as amended. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

APPALACHIAN DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT ANNUAL REPORT 
Ms. Beth Lovette, Appalachian District Health Department Director, presented the Annual 
Report for Fiscal Year 2015-2016.  The report was given for information only; therefore, no 
action was required. 

WESTERN YOUTH NETWORK UPDATE 
Ms. Jennifer Warren, Western Youth Network (WYN) Director, presented an update on current 
activities of the organization.  The report was given for information only; therefore, no action 
was required. 

REQUEST TO ADOPT THE MIDDLE FORK GREENWAY MASTER PLAN 
Ms. Wendy Patoprsty, Middle Fork Greenway Project Director, presented the Middle Fork 
Greenway Master Plan for consideration.  Ms. Patoprsty stated that approval was recently 
granted to apply for a Parks and Recreation Trust Fund (PARTF) grant in May for the Middle 
Fork Greenway construction.  Adoption of the Middle Fork Greenway Master Plan would be 
favorable on the grant application. 
 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Vice-Chairman Kennedy, moved to adopt the master plan as 
presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

032117 BCC Meeting

3



PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE HIGH IMPACT LAND USE ORDINANCE 
Mr. Joe Furman, Planning and Inspections Director, presented proposed amendments to the High 
Impact Land Use (HILU) Ordinance resulting from the public hearing held on February 28, 
2017. 
 
Mr. Furman presented an updated definition of Immediate Family as follows:  A person’s 
parents, spouse, children and siblings, including the parent’s spouse.  Includes step children and 
adopted children and their spouses. 
 
County Attorney di Santi stated that the HILU moratorium expires on March 10, 2017.   
 
Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to adopt the High Impact 
Land Use Ordinance as amended and including the updated definition of “Immediate Family.” 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

PROPOSED CHANGE ORDERS FOR MEDIC BASE 3 
Mr. Robert Marsh, Maintenance Director, presented the final change orders for Medic Base 3.  
There were four (4) deductive change orders totaling $14,182.80 and six (6) additive change 
orders totaling $13,552.08.  The building committee recommended approving the change orders 
as presented adjusting the contract sum by $630.72 in the County’s favor. 
 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Vice-Chairman Kennedy, moved to approve the change 
orders as presented. 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

TAX MATTERS 
A. Monthly Collections Report 

 

Tax Administrator, Mr. Larry Warren, presented the Tax Collections Report for the month of 
February 2017.  The report was presented for information only and, therefore, no action was 
required. 
 

B. Refunds and Releases 
 

Mr. Warren presented the Refunds and Releases Report for February 2017 for Board approval: 
 

TO BE TYPED IN MINUTE BOOK 
 

Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Hodges, moved to approve the Refunds 
and Releases Report for February 2017 as presented.  
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

032117 BCC Meeting

4



REPORT ON OLD BOONE READY MIX PROPERTY 
County Attorney di Santi gave an overview regarding the Old Boone Ready Mix property. 
 

August 2016 Town of Boone filed action against the property owner, Mike Perry, for 
various violations. 

November 2016 Town of Boone was granted an Order of Enforcement for Mr. Perry to bring 
the property into compliance with the Town’s Unified Development 
Ordinance. 

December 2016 The Court of Appeals decision was reversed.  The Town of Boone’s Extra-
Territorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) removal was deemed constitutional effective 
January 10, 2017. 

January 10, 2017 The Town of Boone no longer has authority over property in the former ETJ 
area.  Since then, the property has been in the County’s jurisdiction, the 
County has requested to intervene in the Town’s case.   

March 6, 2017 The County request to intervene was granted and an order is in place 
authorizing the County to proceed. 

 

County Attorney di Santi, County Manager Geouque, and Planning Director Furman, met and 
viewed the property.  The County Attorney stated that Mr. Perry was expected to be released 
from prison, on unrelated charges, in the next couple of weeks and staff plans to meet with him 
to devise a plan that doesn’t put the County in a difficult situation with the property. 
 
County Attorney di Santi stated that most of the violations on the property appear to be related to 
the building code as well as safety and health regulations.  Discussions have been held regarding 
brownfield grants and the possibility of the District Attorney’s involvement to use potentially 
available state funds to clean up the property. 
 
The report was given for information only; therefore, no action was required. 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Proposed School Calendar Flexibility Resolution 

 

County Manager Geouque presented a proposed joint resolution regarding school calendar 
flexibility for consideration.  The support of the Board is being requested to restore control over 
the school calendar to the local Board of Education.  Upon approval of both Boards, the 
resolution will then be forwarded to our local legislators. 
 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Turnbow, moved to adopt the resolution as 
presented. 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
B. Sheriff’s Office Vehicle Purchase Request 

 

County Manager Geouque stated that at the last meeting, action was tabled on a bid for a 2017 
Chevrolet Silverado 2500 Crew Cab 4WD.  The proposed bid was from Ben Mynatt Chevrolet, a 
North Carolina Sheriff’s Association vendor.  The item was tabled to allow time for staff to 

032117 BCC Meeting

5



verify that local vendors were included on the Sheriff’s Association list of vendors.  The 
Sheriff’s Office submitted the list of vendors to staff in which local vendors were included.  The 
cost for the vehicle including tax and tag is $29,818.46.  The current cost exceeds the budgeted 
amount and therefore a budget amendment will be forthcoming recognizing additional narcotics 
funds. 
 
Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Turnbow, moved to award the bid for the 
2017 Chevrolet Silverado 2500 Crew Cab 4WD pickup, in the total amount of $29,818.46, to 
Ben Mynatt Chevrolet per the North Carolina Sheriff’s Association vendor list and to encourage 
that local bids be sought in addition to the Association list for future vehicles. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
C. Boards and Commissions  

 

County Manager Geouque presented the following Boards and Commissions for consideration: 
 

JCPC 
The Juvenile Crime Prevention Council (JCPC) recommends the following changes to its 
membership due to changes in required positions:  Mr. Andy Ellis to replace Mr. Spencer Sharrits as 
the Member of the Faith Community; Mr. Josh Teague to replace Mr. Eric Eller as the Juvenile 
Defense Attorney; and Mr. Josh Johnson to replace Mr. Timothy Eller as a Court Counselor. 
 
Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Turnbow, moved to waive the second reading 
and appoint the following to the Juvenile Crime Prevention Council:  Mr. Andy Ellis, Faith 
Community representative, Mr. Josh Teague, Juvenile Defense Attorney representative, and Mr. Josh 
Johnson, Court Counselor representative. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 

CCC&TI 
The Caldwell Community College and Technical Institute (CCC&TI) Board of Trustees recommends 
the reappointment of Mr. Lowell Younce to the Board.  His term expires June 30, 2017.  This was a 
first reading; therefore, no action was required. 
 
Several volunteer applications, recently received for various Boards and Commissions, were 
presented. 
 

D. Announcements 
 

County Manager Geouque announced the following: 
 

• The Watauga County Cooperative Extension’s annual "Report to the People" lunch is on 
Tuesday, March 7, 2017, from 11:45 A.M. to 1:00 P.M.   

 

• The FY 2018 Proposed Budget will be presented at the May 2, 2017, Board meeting.  
Budget Work Sessions have been scheduled from 12:00 – 7:00 P.M. on both Thursday, 
May 4 and Monday, May 8, 2017, to review the Proposed Budget.  The County Manager 

032117 BCC Meeting

6



stated that the Board has been invited to the “Teacher of the Year” recognition on May 4, 
2017, at 6:00 P.M.  
 

By consensus, the Board agreed to change the time of the May 4, 2017, Budget Work 
Session to 10:00 A.M. to 5:00 P.M. to allow time for the Board to attend the “Teacher of 
the Year” event. 

 

• A public hearing will be held on Tuesday, March 21, 2017, at 5:30 P.M. to allow for 
citizen comment on proposed amendments to the Watauga County Sign Ordinance. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
Mr. Terry B. Covell stated that changes to the High Impact Land Use Ordinance were helpful but 
requested more protections. 
 
Ms. Annette Reeves had signed up to speak but had to leave for a commitment prior to public 
comment.  Mr. Lee Stroupe asked to speak on her behalf.  Mr. Stroupe stated that Ms. Reeves 
had intended to ask for the noise and environmental concerns to be looked at in regards to 
shooting ranges. 
 
Mr. Stroupe also thanked the Board for the report on the old Boone Ready Mix property. 

CLOSED SESSION 
At 9:37 A.M., Commissioner Turnbow, seconded by Vice-Chairman Kennedy, moved to enter 
Closed Session to discuss Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) and Land 
Acquisition, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(5)(i). 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Turnbow, moved to resume the open 
meeting at 10:56 A.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

ADJOURN 
Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Turnbow, moved to adjourn the meeting at 
10:56 A.M. 
 
 
 
John Welch, Chairman 
 
ATTEST:  Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

032117 BCC Meeting

7



Blank Page 
 
 

032117 BCC Meeting

8



AGENDA ITEM 3: 

APPROVAL OF THE MARCH 21, 2017, AGENDA 
 
 
 
  

032117 BCC Meeting

9



Blank Page 
 
 

032117 BCC Meeting

10



AGENDA ITEM 4: 

PUBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON PROPOSED AMENDMENTS 
TO THE WATAUGA COUNTY SIGN ORDINANCE 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Per Commissioner request, a public hearing has been scheduled to receive citizen comment on 
the recommended changes to the County’s Sign Ordinance.  Changes have been incorporated 
into the ordinance and are in red.  Upon closing of the public hearing the Board may adopt the 
ordinance as presented, schedule a work session to seek additional input, or take no action.  
 
Staff seeks Board direction.  
 
  

032117 BCC Meeting

11



DRAFT AMENDMENT TO THE SIGN ORDINANCE  SEPTEMBER 19, 2016 

 

PROPOSED LANGUAGE IN BOLD TEXT   

 

 103.06. TEMPORARY SIGNS 

 
1. In addition to the signs permitted in Section 102, temporary signs related to Special Events 

are allowed on private property for a time period not to exceed 30 days. Such signs are 
permitted on and off-premises.     

2. In addition to the signs permitted in Section 102, temporary signs related to a single event 
 for commercial enterprises are allowed on private property for a time period not to exceed 
 30 days, with a limit of 4 events per calendar year. Such signs are permitted on-premises 
 only.   
 Note: Prior version of the sign ordinance allowed temporary signs for 6 months.  
3. Temporary signs containing any message are allowed on private property during an election 
 period subject to the area limitations stated herein. An election period begins the first day of 
 filing before on the 30th day before the beginning date of one-stop early voting and 
 ends 10 days after any election conducted under federal, state, county, or city laws or 
 ordinances in which residents of Watauga are entitled to vote, including elections or votes 
 regarding selection or recall of any federal, state, county or city officials, any ballot questions, 
 referendum, constitutional amendments, or advisory vote.  
 Note: Essentially returning to the time frame allowed by the prior ordinance.  
4. Temporary sign(s) located in residential subdivisions may not exceed a total area of 16 
 square feet per parcel.  
5. Temporary sign(s) located in unzoned commercial areas may not exceed a total area of 
 32 square feet per parcel.  
6. Temporary signs located on property offered for sale or lease are allowed for time periods 
 exceeding those listed herein provided such signs are promptly removed following the sale 
 or lease closing date. All signs are subject to the area limitations stated in this Section.  
7. No temporary signs may be illuminated.  
8. All temporary signs must be secured to prevent them from becoming a hazard to 
 pedestrians, vehicles or adjacent property during high winds.  
9. Temporary directional signs are allowed off-premises for a time period not to exceed 
 60 days as a navigational aid to specific destination(s).      
 Note: Proposed language for signage intended to direct motorists to a single 
 destination.   

   

SECTION 112. REMEDIES 

 

1. When the ordinance administrator determines that a sign has been erected, constructed, 

reconstructed, altered, repaired, converted or continued in violation of this ordinance, he 

or she is authorized to institute an action for injunction or take other appropriate action to 

prevent or abate such violation.  

2. The ordinance administrator shall have the authority to remove and impound any 

sign prohibited by Section 106.04 of this ordinance without further notice. The 

ordinance administrator shall impound such signs for a period of 10 days. During 

the 10-day impoundment period, the ordinance administrator shall attempt to notify 

032117 BCC Meeting

12



the owner that the sign has been impounded and may be recovered upon payment of 

a $10.00 recovery fee. In the event impounded signs are not claimed within the 10-

day impoundment period, the county shall have the authority to dispose of such 

signs.    

3. In the event signs prohibited by this ordinance require special resources for 

collection and/or impoundment, the county, or independent contractor under the 

county’s supervision, shall collect and impound the sign. The resulting charges shall 

be assessed to the sign owner.  

 

 

106.04. Prohibited Signs 
 
The following signs are prohibited in the County: 
 

1. Abandoned Signs. 
2. Animated Signs.    
3. Signs containing any words or symbols that would cause confusion because of their 
 resemblance to highway traffic control or direction signals. 
4. Signs located on trees, utility poles, public benches or any other form of public property or 
 within any public right-of-way unless explicitly permitted by the regulations. 
5. Off-Premises temporary signs, other than those explicitly permitted by Section 103.6.   
6. Any signs placed on public property without consent or placed in violation of local, state, or 
 federal requirements. 
 

 

SECTION 107. DEFINITIONS 

 

Directional Sign. A temporary sign, not exceeding 4 square feet, used as a navigational aid 

to direct motorists to specific destination(s) for a single purpose or event open to the public.  

 

Temporary Sign. A sign utilized for a limited time which is not intended to be installed on a 

permanent basis. permanently anchored or secured to a building or the ground and may be 

easily moved from one location to another. Examples include air-activated motion signs, 

balloon signs, banner signs, yard signs, feather flag signs, portable message center signs, 

snipe signs, and sidewalk signs. 

032117 BCC Meeting

13



Blank Page 
 
 

032117 BCC Meeting

14



AGENDA ITEM 5: 

VAYA HEALTH FY 2016 AUDIT REPORT 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Jennifer Ternay, Acting Chief Financial Officer, will present the VAYA Annual Audited 
Financial Statements as required by Statute.  
 
The report is for information only; therefore no action is required. 
 
 
 
 
  

032117 BCC Meeting

15



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, 

DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES, AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE 

SERVICES 

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AND SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

 

 

032117 BCC Meeting

16



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES,  

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES    

TABLE OF CONTENTS  

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT  1 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 4 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 13 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 14 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 15 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  16 

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS – REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 36 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 37 

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 38 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM - PROPORTIONATE   

SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET) 39 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM – CONTRIBUTIONS               40 

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES FOR NC DIVISION OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE REPORTING 41 

BALANCE SHEET – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS – MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS 42 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

- GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS – MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS  43 

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF 

REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES – 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS – MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS TO THE STATEMENT OF 

REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION  44 

SCHEDULE OF COMMITTED FUND BALANCES  45 

COMPLIANCE SECTION 46 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT 

AUDITING STANDARDS 47 

032117 BCC Meeting

17



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES,  

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES    

TABLE OF CONTENTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL 

AND STATE PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 49 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 51 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS 53 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS 54 

 

 

 

 

 

032117 BCC Meeting

18



 

 
 (1) 

An independent member of Nexia International

 

 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

CLAconnect.com 

 

 

 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 

 
Board of Directors 
Smoky Mountain Center for Mental Health, Developmental  
  Disabilities, and Substance Abuse Services 
Sylva, North Carolina 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the major 
fund of Smoky Mountain Center for Mental Health, Developmental Disabilities, and Substance Abuse 
Services (the Organization), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the entity’s basic financial statements as listed in the 
table of contents. 
 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 

032117 BCC Meeting

19



Board of Directors 
Smoky Mountain Center for Mental Health, Developmental  
  Disabilities, and Substance Abuse Services 
 
 

 
 (2) 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the business-type activities and major fund of the Organization as of 
June 30, 2016, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows 
thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 
 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 4-10, the other Postemployment Benefits’ Schedules 
of Funding Progress and Employer Contributions on pages 37-38, and the Local Government 
Employees’ Retirement System Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Asset and Schedule 
of Contributions, on pages 39 and 40, respectively, be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 
 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the basic financial statements of the Organization. The supplemental schedules 
for NC Division of Medical Assistance reporting as well as the accompanying schedule of expenditures 
of federal and state awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, are also 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. 
 
The supplemental schedules for NC Division of Medical Assistance reporting and the schedule of 
expenditures of federal and state awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from 
and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, 
the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a 
whole. 
 
 

 

032117 BCC Meeting

20



Board of Directors 
Smoky Mountain Center for Mental Health, Developmental  
  Disabilities, and Substance Abuse Services 
 
 

 
 (3) 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 27, 
2016, on our consideration of the Organization's internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements 
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization’s 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 
 

 
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

 
Charlotte, North Carolina 
October 27, 2016 

 

032117 BCC Meeting

21



 

 

 

 
 (4) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

 

 

032117 BCC Meeting

22



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES, 

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 

 

 

 
 (5) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

 
The management of Smoky Mountain Center for Mental Health, Developmental Disabilities, and 
Substance Abuse Services (the Organization) offers readers of the Organization’s financial statements 
this narrative overview and analysis of the Organization’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended 
(FYE) June 30, 2016. We encourage readers to read the information presented here in conjunction 
with additional information that we have furnished in the Organization’s financial statements, which 
follow this narrative.  
 

Financial Highlights 

 

 The Organization’s net position increased by a total of $1,029,537. An amount of $6,258,689 of 
this increase was the funding from the Division of Medical Assistance for the two (2) percent 
Medicaid risk reserve and the interest earned on the restricted cash. 

 Net investment in capital assets increased by $126,520 (or 3.31%) as compared to the previous 
year’s end.  

 Unrestricted net position decreased by $5,355,672 to $72,504,587 during the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2016. The key contributing factor for this decrease was a result of state legislature’s 
new requirement in the fiscal year of a single stream replacement requirement (originally 
$14,950,588, with a restoration of $4,047,673, totaling $10,902,915 net) and a state portion of 
risk reserve contribution requirement ($2,325,656).  

 The business-type activity operating revenues were $385,480,140 for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2016. 

 Total operating expenses of all the Organization’s programs were $384,671,717 during the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2016.  

 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

 
The Organization’s basic financial statements consist of three components: 1) the MD&A, 2) fund 
financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. Because the Organization is a special-
purpose government engaged in business-type activities only, the financial statements are presented in 
accordance with paragraph 138 of GASB Statement No. 34. In addition to the financial statements, this 
report contains other supplemental information that will enhance the reader’s understanding of the 
financial condition of the Organization. In addition to the management’s discussion and analysis, 
management has prepared the Statement of Net Position, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 
Changes in Net Position, and the Statement of Cash Flows. 
 

Overview of the Organization 
 
The Organization is an Area Authority or multi-county political subdivision of the state of North Carolina 
operating in accordance with North Carolina General Statute 122C. The Organization’s primary mission 
is to manage a publicly funded health care system which addresses the mental health, substance use 
and intellectual and developmentally disability needs of citizens in the twenty-three county catchment 
area. The twenty-three county catchment area comprises the counties of Alexander, Alleghany, Ashe, 
Avery, Buncombe, Caldwell, Cherokee, Clay, Graham, Haywood, Henderson, Jackson, Macon, 
Madison, McDowell, Mitchell, Polk, Rutherford, Swain, Transylvania, Watauga, Wilkes and Yancey.  
 

032117 BCC Meeting

23



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES, 

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 

 

 

 
 (6) 

Effective July 1, 2012, the Organization began operating under a Medicaid 1915 (b)(c) waiver with the 
Organization bearing the financial risk. The Organization’s operations are funded primarily through 
Medicaid waiver funds, as well as Federal and state funds from the Division of Mental Health, 
Developmental Disabilities, and Substance Abuse Services (DMH/DD/SAS).  
 

Fund Financial Statements 
 
The financial statements are presented on the fund basis. The fund financial statements provide a 
more detailed look at the Organization’s most significant activities by focusing on the individual 
activities of the major funds. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control 
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Organization, like all 
other governmental entities in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance, 
or non-compliance, with finance-related legal requirements, such as the General Statutes (G.S.), the 
Organization’s budget ordinance, or requirements under the Medicaid waivers. The focus is now on the 
activities of the major funds, and not on the type of fund. The Organization maintains one fund based 
on its activities as required and for accountability and control. The fund is an enterprise fund which 
uses the full accrual basis of accounting and accounts for the Organization’s activities in a manner 
similar to a for-profit business. 
 
The Organization adopts an annual budget as required by G.S. 159-42(c). The budget is a legally 
adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens and the management of the Organization 
and the decisions of the Board about which services to provide and how to pay for them. The 
budgetary statements demonstrate how well the Organization complied with the budget ordinance and 
whether or not the Organization succeeded in providing the services as planned when the budget was 
adopted. The budgetary comparison statements use the budgetary basis of accounting and are 
presented using the same format, language, and classifications as the legal budget document. The 
budgetary statements are presented as supplementary information to demonstrate compliance with 
applicable state laws. To account for the difference between the budgetary basis of accounting and the 
full accrual basis, a reconciliation showing the differences in the reported activities is shown at the end 
of the budgetary statement.  
 

Notes to the Financial Statements  
 
The next section of the financial statements is the notes to the financial statements. The notes provide 
additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the financial 
statements. The notes to the financial statements are on pages 16-35. After the notes, supplemental 
information is provided to show details about the Organization’s post-employment benefits.  
 

Other Information  
 
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report includes certain 
required supplementary information required by North Carolina general statutes.  

 

032117 BCC Meeting

24



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES, 

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 

 

 

 
 (7) 

Statements of Net Position 
 
A summary of the Organization’s Statements of Net Position at June 30, 2016 and 2015 is presented in 
Table A-1. 

 

Table A-1 

Condensed Statements of Net Position 

June 30, 2016 and 2015 

2016 2015

Current Assets 108,012,376$  110,724,325$  

Restricted Cash 24,877,639      18,618,950      

Pension Asset -                       1,747,654        

Capital Assets 3,330,239        3,203,719        

Total Assets 136,220,254    134,294,648    

Deferred Outflows of Resources 3,259,690        2,980,160        

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 139,479,944$  137,274,808$  

Current Liabilities 33,510,536$    31,272,857$    

Pension Liability 1,621,946        -                       

Long-Term Liabilities 2,791,986        2,059,562        

Total Liabilities 37,924,468      33,332,419      

Deferred Inflows of Resources 843,011           4,259,461        

Net Position

Net Investment in Capital Assets 3,330,239        3,203,719        

Restricted 24,877,639      18,618,950      

Unrestricted Net Position 72,504,587      77,860,259      

Total Net Position 100,712,465    99,682,928      

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position 139,479,944$  137,274,808$  
 

 

Net position may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government’s financial condition. The 
assets of the Organization exceeded liabilities by $98,295,786 as of June 30, 2016. The Organization 
uses unrestricted cash to pay providers of services and to manage risk associated with the capitation 
payments under the Medicaid waivers.  
 
An additional portion of the Organization’s net position represents resources that are subject to 
external restrictions on how they may be used. An amount of 72.0% of the total fund balance is 
unrestricted while 24.7% of net position is restricted by the Medicaid (b)(c) waiver contract. The 
remaining balance represents the net investment in fixed assets. 

 

032117 BCC Meeting

25



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES, 

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 

 

 

 
 (8) 

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

While the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position show the change in net 
position, it also provides answers to the nature and source of these changes. 

 

Table A-2 

Condensed Statements of Changes in Net Position 

Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 

 
2016 2015

Revenues

Intergovernmental:

Local 2,934,598$      2,939,599$      

Federal 7,336,586        7,040,660        

State 57,678,880      55,338,806      

Medicaid 314,073,589    305,331,457    

Other Income 3,456,487        2,181,792        

Total Revenues 385,480,140    372,832,314    

Expenses

  Personnel 31,350,825      28,866,091      

  Professional Services 3,620,408        2,995,381        

  Supplies 228,541           320,880           

  Current Obligations and Services 3,301,254        2,861,025        

  Fixed Charges and Expenses 5,295,160        4,315,180        

  Capital Outlay 2,009,193        677,219           

  Depreciation 577,099           457,986           

  Contracts and Grants 338,289,237    308,989,462    

Total Expenses 384,671,717    349,483,224    

Nonoperating Income (Loss)

Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets (8,726)              (122,939)          

Interest Income 229,840           154,678           

Total Nonoperating Income 221,114           31,739             

Revenues Over Expenses 1,029,537        23,380,829      

 

Contributed Capital -                       742,700           

Increase in Net Position 1,029,537        24,123,529      

Net Position - Beginning of Year 99,682,928      75,559,399      

Net Position - End of Year 100,712,465$  99,682,928$    
 

032117 BCC Meeting

26



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES, 

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 

 

 

 
 (9) 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

The Organization’s investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, totals $3,330,239 and 
$3,203,719 (net of accumulated depreciation), respectively, as shown in Table A-3 below. These 
assets include land and assets in process (which are not depreciated), buildings, leasehold 
improvements, furniture and other equipment, computer equipment and vehicles. Capital assets 
increased during the year with additions exceeding depreciation expense. 
 

Table A-3 

Capital Assets 

June 30, 2016 and 2015 

 
2016 2015

In Process 206,372$         196,578$         

Land 655,870           655,870           

Buildings 456,327           484,964           

Leasehold Improvements 688,176           822,533           

Vehicles 46,762             25,656             

Office Furniture and Equipment 127,137           204,867           

Computer Equipment 1,149,595        813,251           
       Total Capital Assets 3,330,239$      3,203,719$      

 
 

 
Additional information on the Organization’s capital assets can be found in Note 2 of the Basic 
Financial Statements. 

 
At June 30, 2016 and 2015, the Organization had no outstanding debt associated with these capital 
assets. 
 

Economic and Other Factors 

A number of economic factors currently affect the financial and operational performance of health care 
entities and the Organization including the following: 
 

Restructuring of Mental Health Services in North Carolina. 

A major restructuring of the management and delivery systems of mental health, developmental 
disabilities, and substance abuse services continues in the state of North Carolina. Significant 
changes in funding and operations continue to take place as a result of this reform. 
 
Other Factors for the Year Ended June 30, 2016: 

a. The Organization is an Area Authority operating as a Local Management Entity in the State 
of North Carolina. Effective July 1, 2012, the Organization began operating under a 
Medicaid 1915 (b)(c) waiver, assuming management of Medicaid funded behavioral health 
and intellectual/developmental disability services for Medicaid enrollees in the 
Organization’s 15 county catchment area.  

032117 BCC Meeting

27



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES, 

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 

 

 

 
 (10) 

 
b. On May 20, 2013, the Organization entered into a management agreement with Western 

Highlands Area Authority (Western Highlands) to provide management and oversight of 
Western Highlands and its respective eight county catchment area. This was a result of the 
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) notifying Western Highlands that its 
contracts would be terminated without cause effective July 31, 2013. The Organization 
worked in partnership with DHHS, Western Highlands, Consumer and Family Advisory 
Council, providers, community stakeholders, and others to ensure a smooth transition of 
consumer services and all operations. As of October 1, 2013, all operations of Western 
Highlands had transitioned to the Organization. 

 

Finance Contact 

The Organization’s financial statements are designed to present users with a general overview of the 
Organization’s finances and to demonstrate the Organization’s accountability. If you have any 
questions about the report or need additional financial information, please contact Fred Nirdé, Chief 
Financial Officer, Smoky Mountain Center for Mental Health, Developmental Disabilities, and 
Substance Abuse Services, 200 Ridgefield Court, Asheville, North Carolina, 28806. 
 
 

032117 BCC Meeting

28



 

 

 

 
 (11) 

Basic Financial Statements 

032117 BCC Meeting

29



 

 
 (12) 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 

 

032117 BCC Meeting

30



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES,  

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES    

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 
 

 
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 

 (13) 

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents 95,333,876$    

Accounts Receivable, Net 11,415,538

Prepaid Expenses 1,214,837

Other Assets 48,125

Total Current Assets 108,012,376

NON-CURRENT ASSETS  

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 24,877,639

Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated Depreciation) 3,330,239

Total Noncurrent Assets 28,207,878      

   
Total Assets 136,220,254    

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 3,259,690        

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 139,479,944$  

 

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities 17,231,875$    

Liability for Claims Incurred, but not Reported 15,165,180

Deferred Revenue 888,481

Compensated Absences - Current Portion 225,000

Total Current Liabilities 33,510,536

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES  

  Other Postemployment Benefits 716,809

  Pension Liability 1,621,946

  Deferred Lease Liability 112,560

  Compensated Absences - Long-Term 1,962,617

Total Liabilities 37,924,468      

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 843,011

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets 3,330,239        

Restricted:

   Medicaid Risk Reserve 24,877,639      

Unrestricted 72,504,587      
Total Net Position 100,712,465    

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position 139,479,944$  

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

032117 BCC Meeting

31



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES,  

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES    

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 
 
 

 
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 

 (14) 

OPERATING REVENUES  

Intergovernmental:

Local 2,934,598$         

Federal 7,336,586

State 57,678,880

Medicaid 314,073,589

Other Income 3,456,487
Total Revenues 385,480,140       

 

EXPENSES

Personnel 31,350,825

Professional Services 3,620,408
Supplies and Materials 228,541

Current Obligations and Services 3,301,254

Fixed Charges and Expenses 5,295,160

Capital Outlay 2,009,193

Depreciation 577,099

Contracts and Grants 338,289,237

Total Expenses 384,671,717       

 

Operating Income 808,423              

NONOPERATING INCOME (LOSS)  

Loss on Sale of Capital Assets (8,726)                 

Interest Income 229,840

Total Nonoperating Income 221,114              

Increase in Net Position 1,029,537           

NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR 99,682,928         

 

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR 100,712,465$     

 

 
 
 

 

032117 BCC Meeting

32



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES,  

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES  

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 
 
 

 
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 

 (15) 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from Federal, State, and Local Agencies 377,449,451$  

Payments to Suppliers (14,398,276)     

Payments to Employees (31,197,913)     

Payments for Contracted Services (336,940,039)   

Other Receipts and Payments, Net 3,485,228        

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (1,601,549)       

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of Capital Assets (712,345)          

Net Cash Used in Capital and Related Financing Activities (712,345)          

 CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  

  Interest 229,840           

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 229,840           

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (2,084,054)       

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 122,295,569    

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR 120,211,515$  

Cash and Cash Equivalents 95,333,876$    

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 24,877,639      

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 120,211,515$  

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided from operating activities:

Operating Income 808,423$         

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash Provided by

 Operating Activities:

Depreciation 577,099           

Change in Assets and Liabilities:

Increase in Accounts Receivable (5,462,683)       

Increase in Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets (168,111)          

Increase in Pension Related Accounts (326,380)          

Increase in Other Postemployment Benefits Liability 196,852           

Increase in Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 1,349,198        

Increase in Deferred Revenue 888,481           

Increase in Deferred Lease Liability 56,280             

Increase in Compensated Absences 479,292           

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (1,601,549)$     

032117 BCC Meeting

33



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES,  

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 
 

 
 (16) 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accounting policies of Smoky Mountain Center for Mental Health, Developmental 
Disabilities, and Substance Abuse Services (the Organization) conform to generally 
accepted accounting principles as applicable to governments. The following is a summary 
of the more significant accounting policies. 
 

A. Reporting Entity 
 
The Organization is a local management entity (LME) and managed care organization 
(MCO) designated by and functioning under the control of the North Carolina Department 
of Health and Human Services to provide mental health, developmental disabilities and 
substance abuse services in Alexander, Alleghany, Ashe, Avery, Buncombe, Caldwell, 
Cherokee, Clay, Graham, Haywood, Henderson, Jackson, Macon, Madison, McDowell, 
Mitchell, Polk, Rutherford, Swain, Transylvania, Watauga, Wilkes and Yancey counties. 
The services include reviewing and evaluating the area needs and programs in mental 
health, mental impairment, alcoholism, drug dependency and related fields, and developing 
jointly with the North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services, Division of 
Mental Health, Developmental Disabilities, and Substance Abuse Services, an annual plan 
for the effective development, use and control of state and local facilities and resources in 
a comprehensive program of mental health service for the residents of the area. The 
Organization, which is governed by a twenty-one member board of directors, is an area 
authority empowered by Chapter 122C of the North Carolina General Statutes with the 
responsibility to oversee and control all activities related to mental health, developmental 
disabilities, and substance abuse services in its target area. The Organization has no 
component units, which under generally accepted accounting principles are legally 
separate entities for which the Organization is financially accountable.  
 

B. Basis of Presentation, Fund Accounting 
 

The accounts of the Organization are organized and operated on a fund basis. A fund is an 
independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts recording its 
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, net 
position, revenues, and expenses.  

 
The Organization accounts for its operations as an enterprise fund. An enterprise fund is 
used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner similar to 
private business enterprises – where the intent of the governing body is that the costs 
(expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a 
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the 
governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenue earned, expenses 
incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, 
management control, accountability, or other purposes.  
 

 

032117 BCC Meeting

34



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES,  

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 
 

 
 (17) 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)  

B. Basis of Presentation, Fund Accounting (Continued)  
 
The Enterprise Fund is the major operating fund of the Organization which accounts for all 
activity. The Enterprise Fund financial statements are reported using the economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are 
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, 
regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in which 
the Organization gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value 
in exchange, include grants, entitlements, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue 
from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all 
eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Activity related to the internal service fund of 
the Organization has been presented with the major operating fund for reporting purposes. 
The internal service fund was used in the past by the Organization to account for health 
and dental insurance to employees and eligible retirees. 
 
Amounts reported as revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, 
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants 
and contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are 
reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues.  
 
Intergovernmental revenues are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not 
measurable until received in cash. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue 
when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other grant requirements have 
been satisfied. 
 
All funds of the Organization are maintained on the modified accrual basis during the year; 
however, the financial statements for the Organization have been reported on the accrual 
basis. Under this basis, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded 
when incurred. In converting from the modified accrual basis to the full accrual basis, the 
changes required may include adjustments for depreciation, capital outlay, compensated 
absences, and other postemployment benefits. 
 

032117 BCC Meeting

35



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES,  

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES    

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 
 

 
 (18) 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

C. Budgetary Data 

 
The Organization maintains budgetary controls over all funds, as required by the North 
Carolina General Statutes. An annual budget is adopted for the Enterprise Fund. All annual 
appropriations lapse at the fiscal year-end. All budgets are prepared using the modified 
accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the 
functional level for all annually budgeted funds. Amendments are required for any revisions 
that alter total expenditures of any fund or that change functional appropriations by more 
than $5,000. The governing board must approve all amendments. During the year, several 
immaterial amendments to the original budget were necessary. The budget ordinance must 
be adopted by July 1 of the fiscal year or the governing board must adopt an interim budget 
that covers that time until the annual ordinance can be adopted. The budget was prepared 
on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The budget presented in these statements is 
the budget ordinance amended through June 30, 2016. 
 

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position  
 

1. Deposits and Investments 
 
All deposits of the Organization are made in board-designated official depositories and are 
secured as required by G.S. 159-31. The Organization may designate, as an official 
depository, any bank or savings association whose principal office is located in North 
Carolina. Also, the Organization may establish time deposit accounts such as NOW and 
SuperNOW accounts, money market accounts, and certificates of deposit.  
 
State law [G.S. 159-30(c)] authorizes the Organization to invest in obligations of the United 
States or obligations fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States; 
obligations of the State of North Carolina; bonds and notes of any North Carolina local 
government or public Organization; obligations of certain non-guaranteed Federal 
agencies; certain high quality issues of commercial paper and bankers' acceptances and 
the North Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT).  The Organization’s investments 
are reported at fair value. The NCCMT Cash Portfolio, an SEC-registered (2a-7) external 
investment pool, is measured at amortized cost, which is the NCCMT’s share price. The 
NCCMT Term Portfolio’s securities are valued at fair value.  
 

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 
All cash and investments are essentially demand deposits and are considered cash and 
cash equivalents. The Organization considers demand deposits and investments 
purchased with an original maturity of three months or less, which are not limited as to use, 
to be cash and cash equivalents. 
 
Restricted cash consists of cash required to be set aside in a separate account by the 
Medicaid waiver. 
 
 

032117 BCC Meeting

36



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES,  

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES    

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 
 

 
 (19) 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position (Continued)  
 

3. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 
 
All receivables that historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown net of an 
allowance for doubtful accounts. This amount is estimated by analyzing the percentage of 
receivables that were written off in prior years and evaluating current information related to 
the collectability of individual receivables. 
 

4. Prepaid Items 
 
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are 
recorded as prepaid items in the financial statements. 
 

5. Capital Assets 
 

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. 
Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. 
The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 
materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.  
 

Capital assets of the Organization are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the 
following estimated useful lives: 

  Years 

Buildings  
Leasehold Improvements 
Vehicles   

20 
5-20 
4-5 

Office Furniture 5-10 
Computer Equipment 3-5 

 

6. Long-Term Obligations 
 

Long-term obligations are reported as liabilities and classified as short-term or long-term 
depending on their respective maturities.  

 

7. Compensated Absences 
 

The vacation policy of the Organization provides for the accumulation of up to two hundred 
and forty (240) hours earned vacation leave with such leave being fully vested when 
earned. An expense and a liability for compensated absences and the salary-related 
payments are recorded as the leave is earned. The portion of that time that is estimated to 
be used in the next fiscal year has been designated as a current portion in the financial 
statements.  

032117 BCC Meeting

37



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES,  

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES    

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 
 

 
 (20) 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position (Continued) 

 

7. Compensated Absences (Continued) 
 
The sick leave policy of the Organization provides for an unlimited accumulation of earned 
sick leave. Sick leave does not vest, but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of 
retirement may be used in the determination of length of service for retirement benefit 
purposes. Since the Organization has no obligation for accumulated sick leave until it is 
actually taken, no accrual for sick leave has been made. 
 

8. Deferred Rent 

Rent expenses are reported on a straight-line basis. Differences between monthly rent 
expenses and rent payments are recorded as a deferred rent liability and adjustment to 
straight-line is amortized over the life of the lease term. The reported liability relates to the 
office building in Sylva, NC. 
 

9. Pension Plans 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about 
the fiduciary net position of the Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System 
(LGERS) and additions to/deductions from LGERS’ fiduciary net position have been 
determined on the same basis as they are reported by LGERS.  For this purpose, plan 
member contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due.  The 
Organization’s employer contributions are recognized when due and the Organization has 
a legal requirement to provide the contributions.  Benefits and refunds are recognized 
when due and payable in accordance with the terms of LGERS.  Investments are reported 
at fair value. 

 

10. Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 
 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate 
selection for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statements element, 
Deferred Outflows of Resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a 
future period and so will not be recognized as an expense or expenditure until then. The 
Organization has two items that meet this criterion - contributions made to the pension plan 
in the 2016 fiscal year and changes in proportion and differences between the 
Organization’s contributions and proportionate share of contributions. 
 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate 
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statements element, 
Deferred Inflows of Resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a 
future period and so will not be recognized as revenue until then. The Organization has two 
items that meet this criterion – differences between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments and differences between expected and actual experience. 
 

032117 BCC Meeting

38



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES,  

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES    

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 
 

 
 (21) 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position (Continued) 

 

11. Net Position 
 

Net position is classified into three parts: net investment in capital assets, restricted, and 
unrestricted. Unrestricted net position includes the portion of net position that bears no 
restriction as to use or purpose. Net investment in capital assets includes resources 
invested in capital assets. Restricted net position includes revenue resources that are 
restricted to specific purposes externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or 
laws or regulations of other governments or imposed by law. Amounts restricted for the 
Medicaid Risk Reserve include the portion of net position that is restricted by the Medicaid 
1915 b/c waiver. 
 
 

NOTE 2 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 

A. Assets 
 

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
All of the Organization’s deposits are either insured or collateralized by using one of two 
methods. Under the Dedicated Method, all deposits exceeding the Federal Depository 
Insurance coverage level are collateralized with securities held by the Organization in its 
name. Under the Pooling Method, which is a collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are 
collateralized with securities held by the State Treasurer's agent in the name of the State 
Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary capacity for the Organization, 
these deposits are considered to be held by their agents in the entity’s name. The amount 
of the pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method for non-interest 
bearing deposits and the actual current balance for interest-bearing deposits. Depositories 
using the Pooling Method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled 
collateral covering uninsured deposits. The State Treasurer does not confirm this 
information with the Organization or with the escrow agent. Because of the inability to 
measure the exact amount of collateral pledged for the Organization under the Pooling 
Method, the potential exists for undercollaterization, and this risk may increase in periods of 
high cash flows. However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina enforces strict standards 
of financial stability for each depository that collateralizes public deposits under the Pooling 
Method. The Organization has no formal policy regarding custodial credit risks for deposits, 
but relies on the State Treasurer to enforce standards of minimum capitalization for all 
Pooling Method financial institutions and to monitor them for compliance. 
 
 
 
 

032117 BCC Meeting

39



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES,  

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 
 

 
 (22) 

NOTE 2 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

A. Assets (Continued) 
 

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents (Continued) 
 

At June 30, 2016, the Organization's deposits had a carrying amount of $105,915,867 and 
a bank balance of $107,046,022. Of the bank balance, $500,000 was covered by Federal 
Depository Insurance; $106,546,022 in interest bearing deposits was covered by collateral 
held under the Pooling Method. 
 

At June 30, 2016, the Organization had $1,350 cash on hand. 
 

2. Investments 
 

The Organization measures and records its investments using fair value measurement 
guidelines established by generally accepted accounting principles.  These guidelines 
recognize a three-tiered fair value hierarchy, as follows: 
 

Level 1:  Quoted prices for identical investments in active markets; 
Level 2:  Observable inputs other than quoted market prices; and, 
Level 3:  Unobservable inputs. 

 

At June 30, 2016, the Organization had the following investments, which are included 
within cash and cash equivalents on the Statement of Net Position, measured at fair value: 
 

Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Investments by Fair Value Level

Money Markets 14,295,648$   14,295,648$   -$                       -$                      

Total Investments by Fair Value Level 14,295,648$   14,295,648$   -$                       -$                      

 
Interest Rate Risk: The Organization has no policy on interest rate risk. 
 

Custodial Credit Risk: The Organization has no policy on custodial credit risk. 
 

Credit Risk: The Organization’s investment in the NC Capital Management Trust Term 
Portfolio is unrated. The Term Portfolio is authorized to invest in obligations of the U.S. 
government and agencies, and in high grade money market instruments as permitted 
under North Carolina General Statutes 159-30 as amended.  
 

At June 30, 2016, the Organization's investments and maturities are as follows: 

Fair Less than 6-12 1-3

Value 6 Months Months Years

NC Capital Management Trust 14,295,648$   14,295,648$   N/A N/A

14,295,648$   14,295,648$   -$                       -$                      
 

 

*Because the NC Capital Management Trust Term Portfolio had a duration of 0.4 years, it 
was presented as an investment with a maturity of less than 6 months.  

032117 BCC Meeting

40



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES,  

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 
 

 
 (23) 

NOTE 2 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

A. Assets (Continued) 

 

3. Receivables  
 

Receivables at June 30, 2016, were as follows: 
 

Other Other

Governments Providers Total

General 189,576$          11,441,109$     11,630,685$         

Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts -                        (215,147) (215,147)               

Total 189,576$          11,225,962$     11,415,538$         

 
B.  

4. Capital Assets 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2016, was as follows: 
 

Beginning Ending

Balances Increases Decreases Balance

Governmental Activities:

Capital Assets not Being Depreciated:

  Land 655,870$          -$                     -$                   655,870$          

  Construction in Progress 196,578            9,794               -                     206,372            

Total Capital Assets not Being Depreciated 852,448            9,794               -                     862,242            

Capital Assets Being Depreciated:

Buildings 546,464            -                       -                     546,464            

Vehicles 26,202              29,500             -                     55,702              

Computer Equipment 3,030,479         637,250           -                     3,667,729         

Office Furniture 629,943            -                       13,778           616,165            

Leasehold Improvements 1,010,947         35,801             -                     1,046,748         

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 5,244,035         702,551           13,778           5,932,808         

  

Less: Accumulated Depreciation for:

Buildings 61,500              28,637             -                     90,137              

Vehicles 546                   8,394               -                     8,940                

Computer Equipment 2,217,228         300,906           -                     2,518,134         

Office Furniture 425,076            69,004             5,052             489,028            

Leasehold Improvements 188,414            170,158           -                     358,572            

Total Accumulated Depreciation 2,892,764         577,099           5,052             3,464,811         

Capital Assets, Net 3,203,719$       135,246$          8,726$           3,330,239$       

In addition, the Organization acquired $530,190 of minor capital assets that were below the 
capitalization threshold of $5,000. 

032117 BCC Meeting

41



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES,  

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 
 

 
 (24) 

NOTE 2 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

B. Liabilities 
 

1. Payables  

 
Accounts payable, incurred but not reported claims and other current liabilities at June 30, 
2016, were as follows: 

Accrued Incurred but

Wages and not Reported

Vendors Benefits Claims Total

Payables 14,046,108$     3,185,767$       15,165,180$         32,397,055$        

Total 14,046,108$     3,185,767$       15,165,180$         32,397,055$        

 
 

 

 

2. Pension Plan Obligations, Other Employment Benefits, and Other Post 

Employment Benefits  
 

a. Retirement Plan 
 
Plan Description. The Organization is a participating employer in the statewide Local 
Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer 
defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of North Carolina. LGERS 
membership is comprised of general employees of participating local governmental entities. 
Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit 
provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. Management of the plan is vested in 
the LGERS Board of Trustees, which consists of 13 members – nine appointed by the 
Governor, one appointed by the State Senate, one appointed by the State House of 
Representatives, and the State Treasurer and State Superintendent, who serve as ex-
officio members. The Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System is included in 
the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The 
State’s CAFR includes financial statements and required supplementary information for 
LGERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 
Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, by calling (919) 981-5454, or at 
www.osc.nc.gov. 
 
Benefits Provided. LGERS provides retirement and survivor benefits. Retirement benefits 
are determined as 1.85% of the member’s average final compensation times the member’s 
years of creditable service. A member’s average final compensation is calculated as the 
average of a member’s four highest consecutive years of compensation. Plan members are 
eligible to retire with full retirement benefits at age 65 with five years of creditable service, 
at age 60 with 25 years of creditable service, or at any age with 30 years of creditable 
service. Plan members are eligible to retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 
20 years of creditable service or at age 60 with five years of creditable service. Survivor 
benefits are available to eligible beneficiaries of members who die while in active service or 
within 180 days of their last day of service and who have either completed 20 years of 
creditable service regardless of age or have completed five years of service and have 
reached age 60. 

032117 BCC Meeting

42

http://www.osc.nc.gov/


SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES,  

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 
 

 
 (25) 

NOTE 2 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

B. Liabilities (Continued) 

 
2. Pension Plan Obligations, Other Employment Benefits, and Other 

Postemployment Benefits (Continued) 

 
 a. Retirement Plan (Continued) 

 
Eligible beneficiaries may elect to receive a monthly Survivor’s Alternate Benefit for life or a 
return of the member’s contributions. The plan does not provide for automatic post-
retirement benefit increases. Increases are contingent upon actuarial gains of the plan. 
 
Contributions. Contribution provisions are established by General Statute 128-30 and may 
be amended only by the North Carolina General Assembly. The Organization’s employees 
are required to contribute 6% of their compensation. Employer contributions are actuarially 
determined and set annually by the LGERS Board of Trustees. The Organization’s 
contractually required contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2016, was 6.67% for 
general employees, actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with 
employee contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees 
during the year. Contributions to the pension plan from the Organization were 
approximately $1,673,000 for the year ended June 30, 2016. 
 
At June 30, 2016, the Organization reported a liability of approximately $1,622,000 for its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of 
June 30, 2015. The total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2014. The total pension liability 
was then rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2015 utilizing update 
procedures incorporating the actuarial assumptions. The Organization’s proportion of the 
net pension liability was based on a projection of the Organization’s long-term share of 
future payroll covered by the pension plan, relative to the projected future payroll covered 
by the pension plan of all participating LGERS employers, actuarially determined. At June 
30, 2015, the Organization’s proportion was 0.36%. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2016, the Organization recognized pension expense of 
$1,347,085. At June 30, 2016, the Organization reported deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience -$                    381,249$           

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on

   pension plan investments -                      461,762             

Changes in proportion and differences between Organization

   contributions and proportionate share of contributions 1,586,224        -                        

Organization contributions subsequent to the measurement date 1,673,466        -                        

Total 3,259,690$      843,011$           

032117 BCC Meeting

43



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES,  

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 
 

 
 (26) 

NOTE 2 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

B. Liabilities (Continued) 
 

2. Pension Plan Obligations, Other Employment Benefits, and Other 

Postemployment Benefits (Continued) 
 

 a. Retirement Plan (Continued) 
 
 

Deferred outflows of resources of approximately $1,673,000 resulting from the 
Organization’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a 
decrease of the net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2017. Other amounts 
reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be 
recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

Year ended June 30,

2017 (45,600)$         

2018 (45,600)           

2019 (48,569)           

2020 882,982           

743,213$         

 
 

Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability in the December 31, 2014 actuarial 
valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods 
included in the measurement: 
 

Inflation 3.0 percent

Salary increases 4.25 to 8.55 percent, including inflation 

and productivity factor

Investment rate of return 7.25 percent, net of pension plan

investment expense, including inflation

 
The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, gender, and health status (i.e. 
disabled and healthy). The current mortality rates are based on published tables and based 
on studies that cover significant portions of the U.S. population. The healthy mortality rates 
also contain a provision to reflect future mortality improvements. 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2014 valuation were based on the 
results of an actuarial experience study for the period January 1, 2005 through December 
31, 2009. 
 

Future ad hoc Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) amounts are not considered to be 
substantively automatic and are therefore not included in the measurement. 

032117 BCC Meeting

44



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES,  

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 
 

 
 (27) 

NOTE 2 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

B. Liabilities (Continued) 
 

2. Pension Plan Obligations, Other Employment Benefits, and Other 

Postemployment Benefits (Continued) 
 

a. Retirement Plan (Continued) 
 

The projected long-term investment returns and inflation assumptions are developed 
through review of current and historical capital markets data, sell-side investment research, 
consultant whitepapers, and historical performance of investment strategies. Fixed income 
return projections reflect current yields across the U.S. Treasury yield curve and market 
expectations of forward yields projected and interpolated for multiple tenors and over 
multiple year horizons. Global public equity return projections are established through 
analysis of the equity risk premium and the fixed income return projections. Other asset 
categories and strategies’ return projections reflect the foregoing and historical data 
analysis. These projections are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return 
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation 
percentage and by adding expected inflation. 
 

The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major 
asset class as of June 30, 2015 are summarized in the following table: 
 

Long-Term  

Expected Rate

Asset Class Target Allocation of Return

Fixed Income 29.0% 2.2%

Global Equity 42.0% 5.8%

Real Estate 8.0% 5.2%

Alternatives 8.0% 9.8%

Credit 7.0% 6.8%

Inflation Protection 6.0% 3.4%

Total 100%
 

 
The information above is based on 30-year expectations developed with the consulting 
actuary for the 2014 asset liability and investment policy study for the North Carolina 
Retirement Systems, including LGERS. The long-term nominal rates of return underlying 
the real rates of return are arithmetic annualized figures. The real rates of return are 
calculated from nominal rates by multiplicatively subtracting a long-term inflation 
assumption of 3.00%. All rates of return and inflation are annualized. 

032117 BCC Meeting

45



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES,  

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 
 

 
 (28) 

NOTE 2 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

B. Liabilities (Continued) 

 

2. Pension Plan Obligations, Other Employment Benefits, and Other 

Postemployment Benefits (Continued) 

 

a. Retirement Plan (Continued) 
 
Discount Rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25%. 
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that 
contributions from plan members will be made at the current contribution rate and that 
contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially 
determined. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was 
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of the current plan 
members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments 
was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension 
liability. 
 
Sensitivity of the Organization’s proportionate share of the net pension asset to changes in 
the discount rate. The following presents the Organization’s proportionate share of the net 
pension asset calculated using the discount rate of 7.25 percent, as well as what the 
Organization’s proportionate share of the net pension asset or net pension liability would be 
if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.25 percent) 
or one percentage point higher (8.25 percent) than the current rate: 

 
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase 

(6.25%) (7.25%) (8.25%)

Organization's proportionate share of the 

net pension liability (asset) 11,310,028$  1,621,946$      (6,540,056)$   

 
 

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary 
net position is available in the separately issued Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
(CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. 

032117 BCC Meeting

46



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES,  

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 
 

 
 (29) 

NOTE 2 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

B. Liabilities (Continued) 

 

2. Pension Plan Obligations, Other Employment Benefits, and Other 

Postemployment Benefits (Continued) 

 

b. Other Postemployment Benefits 
 

Plan Description. The Organization administers a defined benefit Employment Benefit Fund 
(EBF). As of September 2004, Organization employees who retire and draw benefits from 
the Local Government Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS) have the ability to 
continue their health and dental coverage under the Organization’s EBF. The Organization 
will provide a percentage of the cost of coverage based on the number of years of service 
and the employee’s age at the time of retirement. The applicable percentage of total cost to 
be paid by the Organization is listed in the following tables. 
 

Employees With at Least 20 Years of Service at

Smoky Mountain Center and Receiving LGERS Benefits

Organization Contribution

to Health and/or

Retirement Age Dental Costs

60 - 64 100%

59 83%

58 71%

57 62%

56 55%

55 50%

54 45%

53 41%

52 38%

51 35%

50 33%  
 
 
 

032117 BCC Meeting

47



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES,  

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 
 

 
 (30) 

NOTE 2 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

B. Liabilities (Continued) 
 

2. Pension Plan Obligations, Other Employment Benefits, and Other 

Postemployment Benefits (Continued)  
 

b. Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued) 

 
Employees With at Least 15 Years of Service at

Smoky Mountain Center and Receiving LGERS Benefits

Organization Contribution

to Health and/or

Retirement Age Dental Costs

60 - 64 50%

59 41%

58 35%

57 31%

56 27%

55 25%

54 22%

53 20%

52 19%

51 17%

50 16%  
 
 

Coverage may continue for the retiree until the retiree becomes entitled to Medicare 
benefits or reaches the age of sixty-five, whichever comes first. Also the Organization’s 
retirees can purchase coverage for their dependents at the Organization’s group rates. The 
Organization may amend the benefit provisions. A separate report was not issued for the 
plan. 
 
Membership of the Plan consisted of the following at June 30, 2016, the date of the latest 
actuarial valuation: 
 
 Active plan members     467 
 Retirees and dependents receiving benefits       5 
 Total      472 
 
Funding Policy. The Organization pays the cost of coverage for the health care benefits 
paid to qualified retirees under a Board resolution that can be amended by the Board. The 
Organization has chosen to fund the health care benefits on a pay as you go basis.  
 

032117 BCC Meeting

48



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES,  

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 
 

 
 (31) 

NOTE 2 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

B. Liabilities (Continued) 

 

2. Pension Plan Obligations, Other Employment Benefits, and Other 

Postemployment Benefits (Continued)  

 

b. Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued) 
 
The current ARC rate is 1.0% of annual covered payroll. For the current year, the 
Organization contributed $45,314, or 0.18% of annual covered payroll. The Organization 
obtains insurance through private insurers for health care coverage. The Organization is 
not required to make contributions at a specified percentage of covered payroll. 
Contributions made by retired employees, which includes dependent coverage, totaled 
$18,462 in the year ended June 30, 2016. 
 
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. The Plan’s financial statements are prepared 
using the accrual basis of accounting. Plan member contributions are recognized in the 
period in which the contributions are due. Contributions are recognized when due, and the 
Organization will provide the contributions to the Plan. Benefits and refunds are recognized 
when due and payable in accordance with the terms of each plan. The actuarial methods 
and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-
term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value assets, consistent with 
the long-term perspective of the calculations. Short-term money market debt instruments, 
deposits, and repurchase agreements are reported at cost or amortized cost, which 
approximates fair value. Certain longer term United States Government and United States 
Agency securities are valued at the last reported sales price. Administration costs of the 
Plan are financed through investment earnings.  
 
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The Organization’s annual other post-
employment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required 
contribution (ARC) of the employer, an amount actuarially determined in accordance with 
the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if 
paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any 
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. 
The following table shows the components of the Organization’s annual OPEB cost for the 
current year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the Organization’s 
net OPEB obligation for the postemployment health care benefits: 
 

Annual Required Contribution 251,109$       

Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 20,798           

Adjustments to Annual Required Contribution (29,741)          

Annual OPEB Cost 242,166         

Contributions Made (45,314)          

Increase in Net OPEB Obligation 196,852         

Net OPEB Obligation, Beginning of Year 519,957         

Net OPEB Obligation, End of Year 716,809$       

 
 

032117 BCC Meeting

49



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES,  

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 
 

 
 (32) 

NOTE 2 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

B. Liabilities (Continued) 

 

2. Pension Plan Obligations, Other Employment Benefits, and Other 

Postemployment Benefits (Continued) 

 

b. Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued) 

 
The Organization’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to 
the plan, and the net OPEB obligations for 2016 were as follows: 
 

  Percentage Net

 Annual of Annual OPEB

Year OPEB OPEB Cost (Asset)/

Ended June 30, Cost Contributed Obligation

2010 153,800$          64.00% 110,041$          

2011 153,800            56.00% 168,086            

2012 124,872            99.00% 154,415            

2013 124,872            24.37% 239,371            

2014 197,208            28.86% 379,664            

2015 197,208            28.86% 519,957            

2016 242,166            18.71% 716,809             
 

 

 

Fund Status and Funding Progress. As of June 30, 2016, the most recent actuarial 
valuation date, the plan was not funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was 
$966,754 and the actuarial value of assets was $0, resulting in an unfunded actuarial 
accrued liability (UAAL) of $966,754. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active 
employees covered by the plan) was $24,821,723 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered 
payroll was 3.9 percent. 
 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts 
and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples 
include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and health care cost trend. 
Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required 
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are 
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The 
Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as required supplementary information following 
the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether 
the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing, over time, relative to the 
actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.  
 

032117 BCC Meeting

50



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES,  

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 
 

 
 (33) 

NOTE 2 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

B. Liabilities (Continued) 

 

2. Pension Plan Obligations, Other Employment Benefits, and Other 

Postemployment Benefits (Continued) 

 

b. Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued) 
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes 
are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan 
members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the 
historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members at 
that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are 
designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the 
actuarial value assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.  
 
In the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was 
used. The actuarial assumptions included a 4.00 percent investment rate of return (net of 
administrative expenses), which is the blended rate of the expected long-term investment 
returns on plan assets and on the employer’s own investments calculated based on the 
funded level of the plan at the valuation date and an annual medical cost of 8 percent 
annually with a trend decrease of 0.5 percent annually until an ultimate rate of 5 percent is 
reached. The dental cost trend increase of 5.00 percent was assumed. The actuarial value 
of assets, if any, was determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term 
volatility in the market value of investments over a five-year period. The UAAL is being 
amortized as a level percentage of pay on an open basis. The remaining amortization 
period at June 30, 2016, was 20 years.  
 

c. Other Employment Benefits  
 
The Organization has elected to provide death benefits to employees through the Death 
Benefit Plan for members of the Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System 
(Death Benefit Plan), a multiple-employer, State-administered, cost-sharing plan funded on 
a one-year term cost basis. The beneficiaries of those employees who die in active service 
after one year of contributing membership in the System, or who die within 180 days after 
retirement or termination of service and have at least one year of contributing membership 
service in the System at the time of death are eligible for death benefits. Lump-sum death 
benefit payments to beneficiaries are equal to the employee's 12 highest months' salary in 
a row during the 24 months prior to the employee's death, but the benefit will be a minimum 
of $25,000 and will not exceed $50,000. All death benefit payments are made from the 
Death Benefit Plan. Smoky Mountain Center for Mental Health, Development Disabilities, 
and Substance Abuse Services has no liability beyond the payment of monthly 
contributions. The contributions to the Death Benefit Plan cannot be separated between the 
postemployment benefit amount and the other benefit amount. The Organization considers 
these contributions to be immaterial. 
 

032117 BCC Meeting

51



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES,  

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 
 

 
 (34) 

NOTE 2 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

B. Liabilities (Continued) 
 

3. Risk Management  
 
The Organization is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; malpractice; theft of, 
damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and 
natural disasters. The Organization carries commercial insurance to cover substantially all 
risks of loss. The Organization obtains commercial general liability and professional liability 
coverage of $1,000,000 per occurrence subject to a $3,000,000 limit, liability and collision 
insurance coverage on vehicles of $1,000,000 per occurrence, and workers’ compensation 
coverage subject to a limit of $1,000,000.  
 
The Organization does not carry flood insurance as there are no properties located within 
areas designated as flood areas. 
 
The Organization carries commercial coverage for all other risks of loss. There have been 
no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the previous year and settled claims 
have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 
 
In accordance with G.S. 159.29, the Organization’s employees that have access to $100 or 
more at a given time of the Organization’s funds are performance bonded through a 
commercial surety bond. The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Finance Officer are 
individually bonded for $250,000. 
 

4. Contingent Liabilities 
 
From time to time, the Organization is party to other pending claims and legal proceedings. 
Although the outcome of such matters cannot be forecast with certainty, it is the opinion of 
management and legal counsel that the likelihood is remote that any such claims or 
proceedings will have a material adverse effect on the Organization's financial position or 
results of operations. 
 

5. Long-Term Obligations 
 
As of June 30, 2016, the long-term obligations of the Organization consisted of the 
following:  
 
 

Balance Net Balance Amounts Due

July 1, 2015 Increase June 30, 2016 within One Year

Compensated Absences 1,708,325$     479,292$        2,187,617$        225,000$          

 
Compensated absences typically have been liquidated in the general fund and are 
accounted for on a LIFO basis, assuming that employees are taking leave time as it is 
earned. 

032117 BCC Meeting

52



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES,  

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 
 

 
 (35) 

NOTE 3 SUMMARY DISCLOSURES OF SIGNIFICANT COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Non-Cancellable Operating Leases 

The Organization leases certain operating facilities under non-cancellable operating leases. 
Future lease payments due under these leases subsequent to June 30, 2016 are as 
follows: 
 

Year Ending

June 30, Amount

2017 941,640$           

2018 679,897             

2019 679,897             

2020 339,949             

2,641,383$        
 

 

 

 
Total rent expense for all operating leases amounted to $1,036,289 for the year ended 
June 30, 2016.  

 
 

NOTE 4 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Subsequent to year end, the Organization began the process to legally change its name 
from Smoky Mountain Center for Mental Health, Developmental Disabilities, and Substance 
Abuse Services to Vaya Health.  As of the date of the audited financial statements, the 
Organization has begun doing business as Vaya Health, however, the legal name change 
will become effective on January 1, 2017.  The name change is not expected to have any 
impact on the Organization’s contracts with State agencies or providers. 

 

 

032117 BCC Meeting

53



 
 
 

 
 (36) 

 

 

 

 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL DATA 

(ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REQUIRED BY  

GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD) 

 

 SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

 SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS FOR OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

 LOCAL GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM - PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF 

NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET) 

 LOCAL GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM - CONTRIBUTIONS 

 

 

 

 
 

032117 BCC Meeting

54



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES,  

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES 

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 
 
 
 

 
 (37) 

 Accrued UAAL as a

Actuarial Liability (AAL)- Unfunded Percentage

Actuarial Value of Projected Unit AAL Funded Covered of Covered

Valuation Assets Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b - a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)

6/30/2009 -$                923,900$       923,900$          0.00% 9,054,000$       10.2%

6/30/2012 -                  778,767         778,767            0.00% 9,723,728         8.0%

6/30/2014 -                  994,739         994,739            0.00% 16,770,810       5.9%

6/30/2016 -                  966,754         966,754            0.00% 24,821,723       3.9%

 
 
 

032117 BCC Meeting

55



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES,  

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES 

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 
 
 

 
 (38) 

 
 Annual

Required Percentage 

Year Contribution of ARC

Ended June 30, (ARC) Contributed

2010 153,800$          64.00%

2011 153,800            56.00%

2012 124,872            108.63%

2013 124,872            21.93%

2014 201,325            28.27%

2015 201,325            28.27%

2016 251,109            18.05%  
 
 

032117 BCC Meeting

56



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES,  

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES 

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET) 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015 
 

 
 (39) 

 

Local Government Employees’ Retirement System 
 

2016* 2015*

Organization's proportion of the net pension (asset) liability (%) 0.361400% -0.296340%

Organization's proportion of the net pension (asset) liability ($) 1,621,946$    (1,747,654)$   

Organization's covered-employee payroll 24,821,723    22,101,861    

Organization's proportionate share of the net pension asset

 as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 6.53% -7.91%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total

 pension asset** 98.09% 102.64%  
 

*The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior fiscal year ended  
  June 30. 
 
**This will be the same percentage for all participant employers in the LGERS plan. 
 

032117 BCC Meeting

57



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES,  

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES 

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

CONTRIBUTIONS 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015 
 

 
 (40) 

Local Government Employees’ Retirement System 
 

2016 2015

Contractually required contribution 1,655,609$    1,562,643$    

Contributions in relation to the contractually required

 contribution 1,673,466      1,562,643      

Contribution deficiency (excess) (17,857)$        -$                   

Organization's covered-employee payroll 24,821,723    22,101,861    

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee

 payroll 6.67% 7.07%  
 

032117 BCC Meeting

58



 
 
 

 
 (41) 

 

 

 

 

 

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES 

 FOR 

 NC DIVISION OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE REPORTING 

 

 

 
 
 
 

032117 BCC Meeting

59



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES, AND 

SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES 

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE 

BALANCE SHEET – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS – MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 
 
 

 
(42) 

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents   95,333,876$    

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents   24,877,639

Accounts Receivable, Net of Allowance for  

Uncollectible Accounts and Contractual Allowances   11,415,538

Prepaid Expenses and Deposits 1,214,837

Other Assets  48,125

     Total Assets 132,890,015$  

 

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 14,046,108$    

Accrued Expenses 3,185,767

Liability for Claims Incurred, but not Reported  15,165,180

     Total Liabilities 32,397,055      

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable 1,262,962        

Restricted:   

Stabilization of State Statute  11,415,538      

Medicaid Risk Reserve 24,877,639

Committed 53,798,484

Unassigned  9,138,337        

     Total Fund Balances 100,492,960    

     Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 132,890,015$  

 

Amounts Reported in the Statement of Net Position are Different Because:

Fund Balance 100,492,960$  

Capital Assets Used in Governmental Activities are not Financial Resources

and therefore, are not Reported in the Funds 3,330,239        

Deferred Inflows and Outflows are not Reported in the Funds 2,416,679        

Pension Liabilities are not a Financial Resource and therefore,

are not Reported in the Funds (2,338,755)       

Deferred Liabilities for revenue and rent is not due and payable in the current period

 and, therefore is not Reported in the Fund (1,001,041)       

Liability for Compensated Absences is not Due and Payable in the Current

Period and therefore, is not Reported in the Fund (2,187,617)       

100,712,465$  

 

 

032117 BCC Meeting

60



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENT DISABILITIES, AND 

SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES  

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES – 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS – MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 
 
 
 

 
 (43) 

 Variance

Original Final  Favorable

 Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES

  Intergovernmental:

  State & Federal 62,535,959$   67,202,040$    65,015,466$    (2,186,574)$   

  Local 2,939,599       2,934,599        2,934,598 (1)                   

  Medicaid 298,131,421   310,874,623    314,073,589 3,198,966      

  Other Income 5,282,567       5,409,813        4,575,388 (834,425)        

Total Revenues 368,889,546   386,421,075    386,599,041    177,966         

 

EXPENDITURES

  Personnel & Professional Services 33,171,597     36,082,854      35,968,557 114,297         

  Supplies 135,094          242,772           228,541 14,231           

  Current Obligations 2,430,618       3,324,010        3,301,254 22,756           

  Fixed Expenses 2,725,597       4,013,446        3,902,166 111,280         

  Capital Outlay 3,361,423       2,768,246        2,711,744 56,502           

  Contracts 327,453,217   357,726,055    338,289,237 19,436,818    

Total Expenditures 369,277,546   404,157,383    384,401,499    19,755,884    

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

 Before Other Financing Sources (388,000)         (17,736,308)    2,197,542        19,933,850    

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Appropriated Fund Balance 388,000          17,736,308      -                      (17,736,308)   

Change in Fund Balance -$                    -$                    2,197,542        2,197,542$    

Fund Balance - Beginning 98,295,418      

 

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 100,492,960$  

 

 

032117 BCC Meeting

61



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES,  

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES  

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS – MODIFIED 

ACCRUAL BASIS TO THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET 

POSITION  

JUNE 30, 2016 

 
(44) 

Net Changes in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds 2,197,542$      

 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in

the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position the

cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and

reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital

outlay exceeded depreciation in the current period. 125,453           

Expenses related to compensated absences in the statement of

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position that do not require

current financial resources are not reported as expenses in the funds. (479,292)          

OPEB and Pension funding in the statement of Revenues, Expenses and

Changes in Net Position that do not require current financial resources are

not reported in the funds. 129,528           

Deferred revenues are shown as revenue on the modified accrual basis (888,481)          

Some expenses in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in

Net Position that do not require current financial resources are not reported

as expenses on a modified accrual basis (45,907)            

Book Value of Disposed Capital Assets (9,306)              

Increase in Net Position 1,029,537$      

 
 

 

 

 

 

032117 BCC Meeting

62



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES, 

AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES  

SCHEDULE OF COMMITTED FUND BALANCES 

JUNE 30, 2016 

 

 
(45) 

Unemployment Compensation 500,000$        

Annual Leave Payout 1,200,000       

Community and Capital Reinvestment 

Initiative 16,550,811     

30 Day Cash Operating Reserve 29,500,000     

Single Stream Funding Replacement 4,047,673       

Insurance Premium Liability 1,000,000       

Retention Risk Reserve 1,000,000       

53,798,484$   
 

 

 

032117 BCC Meeting

63



 

 

 
(46) 

Compliance Section 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

032117 BCC Meeting

64



 

 
 (47) 

An independent member of Nexia International

 

 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

CLAconnect.com 

 
 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL  

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE  

AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL  

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE  

WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 
 
Area Board of Directors 
Smoky Mountain Center for Mental Health, Developmental  
  Disabilities, and Substance Abuse Services 
Sylva, North Carolina 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type 
activities of the major fund of Smoky Mountain Center for Mental Health, Developmental Disabilities, 
and Substance Abuse Services (the Organization), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and 
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Organization’s basic 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 27, 2016. 
 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Organization’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal 
control.  
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or 
combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance.  
 
Our consideration of internal controls was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant 
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not 
identified. Given these limitations during our audit, we did not identify an deficiencies in internal control 
that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not 
been identified.  

032117 BCC Meeting

65



Area Board of Directors 
Smoky Mountain Center for Mental Health, Developmental  
  Disabilities, and Substance Abuse Services 
 

 
 (48) 

Compliance and Other Matters  

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization’s financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.  

 

Purpose of this Report  

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Organization’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 

 

 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

Charlotte, North Carolina 
October 27, 2016  
 

032117 BCC Meeting

66



 

 
 (49) 

An independent member of Nexia International

 

 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

CLAconnect.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR  

FEDERAL AND STATE PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL  

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 
 

 
Area Board of Directors 
Smoky Mountain Center for Mental Health, Developmental  
  Disabilities, and Substance Abuse Services 
Sylva, North Carolina  
 

Report on Compliance for Each Major and State Federal Program  

We have audited Smoky Mountain Center for Mental Health, Developmental Disabilities, and 
Substance Abuse Services’ (the Organization) compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of 
the Organization’s major federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2016. The 
Organization’s major federal and state programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results 
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
 

Management’s Responsibility  

Management is responsible for compliance with federal and state statutes, regulations, and the terms 
and conditions of its federal and state awards applicable to its federal and state programs. 
 

Auditors’ Responsibility  

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Organization’s major federal 
and state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We 
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 
Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal and state program 
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Organization’s compliance 
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. 
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal and state program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the 
Organization’s compliance. 
 

Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program 

In our opinion, the Organization complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2016. 

032117 BCC Meeting

67



Area Board of Directors 
Smoky Mountain Center for Mental Health, Developmental  
  Disabilities, and Substance Abuse Services 
 

 
(50) 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the Organization is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and 
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Organization’s internal control over compliance 
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal and 
state program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal and state program and to test 
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control 
over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal or state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control 
over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, 
such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal or state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely 
basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or 
state program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.  

 
 
 

 
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 
 
Charlotte, North Carolina 
October 27, 2016  

032117 BCC Meeting

68



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENT DISABILITIES, AND 

SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES  

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 

 

 

 
(51) 

 

Section I – Summary of Auditors’ Results 

 

Financial Statements 
 

1. Type of auditors’ report issued: Unmodified 
 

2. Internal control over financial reporting: 
 

 Material weakness(es) identified?   yes         x  no 
 

 Significant deficiency(ies) identified?           yes        x           none reported 
 

3. Noncompliance material to financial  
statements noted?   yes         x  no 

 
 
Federal Awards  
 

1. Internal control over major federal programs: 
 

 Material weakness(es) identified?            yes         x           no 
 

 Significant deficiency(ies) identified?           yes          x          none reported 
 

2. Type of auditors’ report issued on  
compliance for major federal programs: Unmodified 

 
3. Any audit findings disclosed that are required 

to be reported in accordance with  
2 CFR 200.516(a)?           yes          x   no 

 
 
Identification of Major Federal Programs 
 
 CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster 
 

 93.958 Block Grant for Community Mental Health 
Services 

 93.959 Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of 
Substance Abuse 

 
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 
Type A and Type B programs: $      750,000 
 
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?           x  yes                       no 

032117 BCC Meeting

69



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENT DISABILITIES, AND 

SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES  

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2016 
 

 

 

 
(52) 

 

State Financial Assistance 
 

1. Internal control over state projects: 
 

 Material weakness(es) identified?            yes         x           no 
 

 Significant deficiency(ies) identified?           yes          x          none reported 
 

2. Type of auditors’ report issued on  
compliance for state projects: Unmodified 

 
3. Any audit findings disclosed that are required 

to be reported in accordance with  
2 CFR 200.516(a)?           yes          x   no 

 

Identification of Major State Projects 
 

 CSFA Number(s) Name of State Project 
 

 536998 Single Stream Funding 
 
 536996001 Crisis Services – Local Psych Inpatient 
 
 536996010 Community Based Crisis 
 
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between  
Type A and Type B state projects: $      500,000 
 

 

Section II – Financial Statement Findings 

 
Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing 

Standards. 

 

Section III – Findings and Questioned Costs – Major Federal Programs 

 
 
Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a). 

 

 

Section IV – Prior Year Findings 

 
There were no findings in the prior year that were required to be reported. 

032117 BCC Meeting

70



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENT DISABILITIES, AND 

SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES  

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 
 

 

 

 
 (53) 

Federal Pass-Through

CFDA Entity Identifying Federal State 

Number Number  Expenditures Expenditures

Federal Awards

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Shelter Plus Care Program 14.238 937,308$        -$                     

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 937,308          -                       

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Service Administration

Passed-through the NC Dept. of Health and Human Services:

Division of Mental Health, Developmental Disabilities 

 and Substance Abuse Services:

Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness (PATH) 93.150 227,784          -                       

Block Grant for North Carolina System of Care Expansion 93.104 52,806            -                       

Block Grant for Adv. Strategic Prevention Framework - 

  Partnership for Success 93.243 107,755          -                       

Social Services Block Grant -

  Community Based Programs-Mental Health 93.667 547,812          -                       

Block Grant for Community Mental Health Services -    

Community Based Program-Mental Health 93.958 1,833,785       -                       
   

Block Grant for Prevention and Treatment

 of Substance Abuse -

  Substance Abuse-Substance Abuse Prevention 93.959 4,647,158       -                       

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 7,417,100       -                       

Total Federal Awards 8,354,408       -                       
 

State Awards

NC Department of Health and Human Services

Division of Mental Health, Developmental Disabilities 

 and Substance Abuse Services:

      Single Stream Funding 536998 -                      51,409,588      

Community Based Crisis 536996010 -                      1,050,650        

DOJ - Supported Employment 536998003 -                      412,600           

Crisis Services - Local Psych Inpatient 536996001 -                      4,565,407        

DOJ - Housing 536998002 -                      145,057           

Total State Awards -                      57,583,302      

Total Federal and State Awards 8,354,408$     57,583,302$    

032117 BCC Meeting

71



SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH, DEVELOPMENT DISABILITIES, AND 

SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES  

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 
 

 

 

 
 (54) 

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards includes the 
Federal and state grant activity of Smoky Mountain Center for Mental Health, 
Developmental Disabilities, and Substance Abuse Services is presented on the accrual 
basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance). Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts 
presented in, or used in the preparation of, the general purpose financial statements. 
 
The Organization has elected not to use the 10% de minimis cost rate. 

 
 

NOTE 2 CONTINGENCIES 

The Organization is subject to audit examination by the funding sources of grants to 
determine its compliance with certain grant provisions. In the event that expenditures could 
be disallowed through the audit, repayment of such disallowances could be required. 

 

032117 BCC Meeting

72



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

REQUEST FOR USE OF COUNTY SPACE FOR WEEKDAY FARMERS’ MARKET 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Carol Coulter, Executive Director – Blue Ridge Women in Agriculture, will request the 
Board consider allowing a weekday Farmers Market at the Human Service parking lot.  One 
point of consideration would be to ensure that the market does not impact County operations as 
the request will be for the market to start around 4:00 PM.   
 
Staff seeks direction from the Board.   
 
  

032117 BCC Meeting

73



Blank Page 
 
 

032117 BCC Meeting

74



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

COOPERATIVE EXTENSION UPDATE 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Eddy Labus, Cooperative Extension, will update the Board on activities related to field crops 
and livestock.    
 
The report is for information only; therefore no action is required. 
 
  

032117 BCC Meeting

75



Blank Page 
 
 

032117 BCC Meeting

76



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

BOARD OF EQUALIZATION AND REVIEW SCHEDULE 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Larry Warren, Tax Administrator, will discuss the scheduling of the FY 2017 Board of 
Equalization and Review (E&R).  The Board may create a special Board of Equalization and 
Review that will serve this spring.  In previous years, the Board was incorporated to include the 
Manager as an alternate member. 
 
The convening date for the Board of Equalization and Review is scheduled for April 19th at 2:30 
PM in the County Commissioners Conference room.  Adjournment of the Board is scheduled for 
Wednesday April 26, 2017 at 7:00 PM in the County Commissioners Conference room.  A 
schedule of the meeting dates will be provided at the Board meeting on April 4, 2017.   
 
Staff will request the Board approve the schedule for FY 2017 Board of Equalization and 
Review as presented.  In addition, direction is requested as to whether the Board wishes to create 
a special board for E&R or if the Board of County Commissioners plans to serve in that capacity.  
Should the Board wish to have the County Manager serve as an alternate member the attached 
resolution would need to be adopted. 
 
Board action is required. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

032117 BCC Meeting

77



 
WATAUGA COUNTY TAX ADMINISTRATION 
 

Courthouse, Suite 21 – 842 West King Street – Boone, NC 28607 
(828) 265-8021 – FAX (828) 264-3230 

 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
  TO:       Deron T. Geouque 
    
  FROM:      Larry D. Warren 
 
  SUBJECT: 2017 Board of Equalization and Review 
 
  DATE:       March 6, 2017 
  ____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

I’d like to address the County Commissioners at the March 21st meeting to discuss  
 
  dates and times for the 2017 Board of E&R. I would suggest: 
 
   Convene on Wednesday April 19, 2017 at 2:30 pm. 
   Adjourn for the taking of applications on Wednesday April 26, 2017 at 7:00 pm. 
 
    
 
  The dates and times the Board approves will be advertised locally prior to the first meeting. The 
  convening and adjourning dates for the 2017 Board of E&R is the official time for taking of  
  applications for hearing of the property tax appeals. Compensation for the 2017 Board of E&R will 
                        also need to be approved. The member compensation for the past several years has been set at  
                        $75.00 per session. Please let me know if you have questions. 
  Also, I would like to present the attached Resolution for the Board’s approval in establishing the 
  Watauga County Board of Equalization and Review for 2017.  
       
 
  

 

 

032117 BCC Meeting

78



COUNTY OF WATAUGA 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING 
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF EQUALIZATION AND REVIEW 

 
 
     WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statutes Section 105-322 authorizes the Board of County 
Commissioners by resolution to appoint a special Board of Equalization and Review to hear and review 
appeals of listings and valuations placed upon taxable property located within Watauga County; and 
 
     WHEREAS, this Board desires to establish a Board of Equalization and Review to perform those duties 
specified in G.S. 105-322. 
 
     NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR THE COUNTY OF 
WATAUGA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
That this Board hereby establishes a Board of Equalization and Review as follows: 
 
 MEMBERSHIP: 

1. Shall consist of the 5 member County Commissioners, each having one vote. 
 
2. Three members shall constitute a quorum. 
 
3. One alternate shall be appointed consisting of the County Manager. 

 
4. The alternate shall only serve to meet a quorum of the Board for a scheduled Board of 

Equalization and Review meeting. 
 
POWERS AND DUTIES: 
The powers and duties of this Board shall be as specified in NCGS 105-328 and Article 21 of the 
Machinery Act. 
 

ADOPTED by the Watauga County Board of Commissioners this, the 21st day of March, 2017. 
 
 
 
       _______________________________________ 
       John Welch, Chairman 
       Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
        
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

DRAFT 

032117 BCC Meeting

79



Blank Page 
 
 

032117 BCC Meeting

80



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

 
A.  Proposed Contract for Public Safety and Emergency Communications Systems 

Comprehensive Study 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
At the annual budget retreat, Board direction was given to develop a contract to complete a 
comprehensive study of public safety and emergency communications systems.  Marvin 
Hoffman has conducted and completed multiple studies and plans for the county.  The County 
has been satisfied with Mr. Hoffman and his work product.  The contract is for $18,000 with 
additional charges for travel authorized with prior approval from the County Manager.  The 
reimbursement rate for the additional travel will follow the County per diem rates.   
 
The County Attorney has reviewed and approved the contract.  Board action is required to accept 
the contract with Mr. Marvin Hoffman in the amount of $18,000 and additional charges for 
travel to be approved by the County Manager and follow the County policy regarding per diems.  
 
 
 
  

032117 BCC Meeting

81



032117 BCC Meeting

82

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF WATAUGA 
CONTRACT 

THIS AGREEMENT, (the "Agreement") is made and entered into this the 

__ day of , 20 17, by and between Marvin K. Hoffman, An 

individual, (hereinafter "Contractor"), and Watauga County, a body politic of 

the State of North Carolina, (hereinafter "County''). The County and the 

Contractor are sometimes referred to herein as "Party'' or "Parties"; 

WHEREAS, Contractor is in the business of preparing comprehensive 

studies that assists in addressing improvements to the Public Safety and 

Emergency Communications Systems operated by the County; and 

WHEREAS, County wishes to retain Contractor to prepare such a study on 

its behalf; 

NOW, THEREFORE, County and Contractor, for the consideration 

hereinafter set forth, agree as follows: 

RECITALS: The recitals are fully incorporated into this Agreement. 

TERM OF AGREEMENT: Contractor shall initiate work under this 

Agreement upon the execution of this Agreement by both parties. Contractor shall 

complete work under this Agreement by October 16, 2017. 

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES: Contractor agrees to provide the services 

to the County as described in Exhibit 1, which is attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by reference, or as periodically amended by the mutual 

written agreement of the Parties 

Page 1 

(hereinafter the "Services"). 



032117 BCC Meeting

83

RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES: Contractor shall personally perform 

the Services described in this Agreement as an independent contractor to the 

County, and no joint venture, partnership, agency, or employment relationship 

is created by this Agreement. Contractor shall have and exercise complete 

control and direction over the methods by which Contractor performs his 

Services, duties and obligations. Contractor shall not be considered an 

employee of the County. Contractor shall have no authority to conduct any 

business on behalf of the County. Contractor shall be fully responsible for the 

acts and omissions of his employees, agents, assigns, contractors, and any 

other individuals or entities with which he contracts or who are otherwise 

acting on his behalf. 

STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE: Contractor shall: (i) use his best 

efforts and all diligence to properly and competently perform the Services; (ii) 

act in a professional manner; (iii) act in the best interests of the County; (iv) act 

in good faith; and (v) act in a manner which is satisfactory to the County. 

CONSIDERATION FOR SERVICES: The County shall pay Contractor for 

his performance of the Services in accordance with Exhibit 2, which is 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

EXPENSES: Contractor acknowledges that he shall pay all expenses 

incurred in carrying out his duties and obligations pursuant to this Agreement, and 

agrees to use supplies standard for the industry. 

TAXES: Contractor shall pay all taxes, withholdings, and benefits, if any, on 

Page 2 



032117 BCC Meeting

84

income received under this Agreement. 

TERMINATION: This Agreement shall terminate upon: (i) Contractor's 

bankruptcy, receivership, insolvency, or dissolution; (ii) upon written notice to the 

Contractor by the County terminating this Agreement; (iii) the written 

revocation of this Agreement by all Parties; or (iv) Contractor's completion of his 

duties under this Agreement. 

INDEMNIFICATION: Contractor agrees to indemnify the County and its 

commission, political representatives, managers, employees, and agents and 

hold them harmless from and against all claims, liabilities, damages, losses, 

costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees, incurred or suffered 

by any of them because of any actual or alleged act or omission of Contractor, 

and any breach of any agreement or covenant of Contractor or any inaccurate 

or erroneous warranty or representation of Contractor contained herein. 

ATTORNEY'S FEES: If the County employs an attorney because of the 

Contractor's breach of this Agreement or any applicable law affecting this 

Agreement, County may recover, and Contractor agrees to pay, all costs 

including, but not limited to, reasonable attorney's fees, court costs, and costs 

of litigation. 

REMEDIES: If Contractor violates this Agreement, the County shall be 

entitled to an accounting and repayment of all profits and benefits realized by said 

violation. In addition, the County may pursue injunctive relief or other rights or 

remedies. The County shall not be required to post any bond with respect to 

such injunctive relief. 

Page 3 



032117 BCC Meeting

85

CONTRACTOR REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES: Contractor 

represents and warrants that: (i) Contractor has the experience, skills and 

ability necessary to timely and completely perform the Services; (ii) Contractor has 

the capacity to enter into this Agreement; (iii) Contractor is not a party to any 

agreement, arrangement or other understanding with any person or entity which 

might affect, restrain or conflict with any of the provisions of this Agreement; 

and (iv) all materials delivered to the County under this Agreement shall be original 

work and shall not violate any patent, copyright, trade secret, or other proprietary 

right of any third party. 

CONFIDENTIALITY: Contractor and County agree that private, 

confidential, proprietary and/ or privileged records and/ or information, whether 

written, electronic, or oral; stored on or communicated by or through any 

medium whatsoever including, but not limited to , voice (hereinafter the 

"Records") are strictly confidential, are not public record, and may only be 

disclosed by either party where required by law. County and Contractor agree 

that nothing in this Agreement constitutes a waiver of confidentiality in any 

respect regarding the Records. Contractor agrees to affirmatively protect the 

confidentiality of the Records, not to publish or reveal, or negligently allow 

another party access to, the Records, or any other information which 

Contractor may obtain by, through, or because of its relationship with County. 

Contractor shall keep confidential and treat as proprietary any and all 

information which may be provided by the County. Contractor shall not violate 

any licensing agreements to software or other programs held by the County. 

Page 4 



032117 BCC Meeting

86

Contractor shall use any information provided by the County solely for the 

purpose for which it was provided and shall observe the restrictions of any 

legends marked thereon. The County's computerized data and information for 

which Contractor is providing services shall be treated as confidential 

information by Contractor. All such information shall be safeguarded and kept 

confidential by Contractor. 

INTELLECTUAL PROPRIETARY RIGHTS: Any and all writings, works, 

copyrights , patents, trade secrets, and other intellectual property rights 

associated with any ideas, concepts, techniques, inventions, processes, works 

of authorship, or other similar matter or thing developed or created by 

Contractor, either independently or in conjunction with others, during the term 

of this Agreement and in any way related to Contractor's provision of the 

Services hereunder shall be the sole and exclusive property of the County. All 

such works of authorship shall, to the extent possible, be considered a work 

made for hire for the County within the meaning of Title 17 of the United States 

Code. 

Data furnished to Contractor by the County, any interim analyses of the 

data, and draft reports will be the sole property of the County. At the 

conclusion of the project, Contractor will return all data, interim reports and 

other materials used during the study to the County. 

NON-WAIVER. The terms of this Agreement may be waived only in 

writing signed by the Party waiving compliance. The County may enforce any 

provision of this Agreement at any time even if the County has not previously 

required Contractor to perform all of Contractor's obligations under this 

Page 5 



032117 BCC Meeting

87

Agreement. The County's waiver of any of its rights arising from any breach of this 

Agreement by Contractor shall not be considered as a waiver of any right arising 

from any subsequent breach. 

REFORMATION AND SEVERABILITY: If any term or provision of this 

Agreement shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or otherwise 

unenforceable in any particular circumstance by a court of competent 

jurisdiction, such finding shall not affect, impair, or invalidate the other terms 

or provisions hereof or the whole of this Agreement, or affect that provision in 

any other circumstance. The invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable 

provision shall be reformed so that each Party shall have the obligation to 

perform reasonably in the alternative to give the other Party the benefit of its 

bargain. In the event the invalid , illegal, or unenforceable provision cannot be 

reformed, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall be given full effect, 

and the invalid or unenforceable provision shall be deemed stricken. 

ASSIGNMENT: This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the 

benefit of the Parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 

Neither this Agreement nor any of the rights, interests or obligations hereunder 

shall be assigned by either Party hereto without the prior written consent of the 

other Party. 

CHOICE OF WORDS: The language used in this Agreement shall be 

deemed to be the language chosen by the Parties to this Agreement to express 

their mutual intent. All pronouns and any variations thereof shall be deemed to 

refer to the masculine, feminine, or neuter, singular or plural as the identity of the 

person or persons may require. 
Page 6 



032117 BCC Meeting

88

NO STRICT CONSTRUCTION: Neither Party will assert that it did not 

draft the words used in the Agreement so that any ambiguities are resolved 

against the Party that drafted the Agreement. This is a negotiated agreement, 

and the rule of strict construction will not be applied against either Party to 

this Agreement. 

HEADINGS: The headings in this Agreement are intended solely for 

convenience of reference and shall be given no effect in the construction or 

interpretation of this Agreement. 

NOTICE: All notices, demands and requests which may be g1ven or 

which are required to be given by either Party to the other must be in writing, 

and shall be sent by express, registered or certified mail, return receipt 

requested or with delivery confirmation, postage prepaid, by overnight courier 

service such as Federal Express, by facsimile transmission, or by personal 

delivery and addressed to each Party hereto at the addresses set forth below. 

Notices, demands or requests which any Party is required or desires to give the 

other hereunder shall be deemed to have been properly given for all purposes 

if: (a) delivered against a written receipt of delivery; (b) mailed by express, 

registered or certified mail of the United States Postal Service, return receipt 

requested , or mail with delivery confirmation of the United States Postal 

Service, postage prepaid; (c) delivered to a nationally recognized overnight 

courier service for next business day delivery, to its addressee at such Party's 

address as set forth above; or (d) delivered via telecopy or facsimile 

transmission to a Party's facsimile number, provided, however, that if such 

Page 7 



032117 BCC Meeting

89

communication is given via telecopy or facsimile transmission, an original 

counterpart of such communication shall concurrently be sent in the manner 

specified in subparagraphs (b) or (c) above. Each such notice, demand or 

request shall be deemed to have been received upon the earlier of: (i) actual 

receipt or refusal by the addressee; or (ii) three (3) business days after deposit 

thereof at any main or branch United States post office if sent in accordance with 

subparagraph (b) above, and the next business day after deposit thereof with the 

courier if sent pursuant to subparagraph (c) above . Any notices or 

communications under this Agreement shall be made at the addresses listed 

below to the individuals designated below: 

To the County: 
Deron T. Geouque 
Watauga County Manager 
814 West King Street, Suite 205 
Boone, NC 28607 

To the Contractor: 
Marvin K. Hoffman 
P.O. Box 2208 
Boone, NC 28607 

SURVIVAL: All covenants and agreements made under this Agreement 

that are intended to survive termination of this Agreement including, but not 

limited to, the Paragraphs entitled Expenses, Taxes, Effect of Termination, 

Indemnification, Remedies, Confidentiality, Intellectual Property, and 

Choice of Forum, shall survive the termination of this Agreement. If 

Contractor has previously signed a Confidentiality Agreement with the County, 

said Confidentiality Agreement shall survive the execution and subsequent 

termination of this Agreement. 

Page 8 



032117 BCC Meeting

90

E-VERIFY: The Contractor shall ensure its compliance with Title IV, 

Subtitle A, of the Illegal Immigration Reform and Immigrant Responsibility Act of 

1996, Pub. L. 104-208, 110 Stat. 3009 and Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the North 

Carolina General Statutes. Contractor shall provide all documentation which may 

be requested by the County, including but not limited to completion of Form I-9 for 

Employment Eligibility Verification, affidavits of compliance with this act, and such 

other documentation as the County may request from time to time. The 

Contractor shall not knowingly hire for employment, employ, or continue to 

employ an unauthorized alien. 

CHOICE OF FORUM: This Agreement is entered into in Watauga 

County, North Carolina, and shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the 

State of North Carolina. The parties hereby agree that the state courts located 

in Watauga County, North Carolina shall be the exclusive venue for the resolution 

of any disputes arising as a result of this Agreement. 

VOLUNTARY SIGNATURE: The Parties represent that each has carefully read 

this Agreement, that they know and understand the contents and 

consequences thereof, and that they have signed this Agreement voluntarily and 

with informed consent. 

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURES: By signing this Agreement, the 

undersigned represents that he is duly authorized to do so and that his act is the 

official and binding act of Contractor or County, respectively. 

ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement, together with its Exhibits, 

constitutes the entire and integrated agreement of the parties and supersedes 

Page 9 



032117 BCC Meeting

91

all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral. 

MODIFICATION: No changes, modifications, or amendments of any term 

shall be valid unless agreed upon by the Parties in writing. 

COUNTERPARTS: This Agreement may be executed in two or more 

counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which shall 

constitute one and the same document. 

NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES: The obligations of each party to this 

Agreement shall inure solely to the benefit of the other party, and no person or 

entity shall be a third-party beneficiary to this Agreement. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, County and Contractor have hereunto set their 

hands and affixed their seals the day and year first above written. 

WATAUGA COUNTY CONTRACTOR 

(Seal) ~r~ 
Marvin K. Hof£ 

(Seal) 
By: Deron Geouque 

Watauga County Manager 

ATTEST: 

By: (SEAL) 
Anita Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local 
Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act. 

Margaret Pierce 
Watauga County Finance Officer 

Page 10 



032117 BCC Meeting

92

EXHIBIT 1 
SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED BY CONTRACTOR 

Marvin K. Hoffman (CONTRACTOR) will complete a comprehensive study for 
Watauga County, NC (COUNTY) of its Public Safety and Emergency 
Communications Systems. 

It is mutually agreed by the COUNTY and the CONTRACTOR that following 
services will be provided by the CONTRACTOR: 

• Phase I - Inventory existing county-owned emergency communications 
systems and equipment. Documentation of age, condition and 
upgradeability of repeaters, as well as condition of generators, towers and 
antennas, including an assessment of paths and feasibility of adding 
microwave links between county sites. 

• Phase II - Hold individual meetings with the Sheriff, Fire Chiefs, Rescue 
Squad Chiefs, Police Chiefs, MEDIC, 911 Director and Emergency 
Management Coordinator to receive Stakeholder Group comments on 
shortcomings of existing communications systems (including County-owned 
systems and NC VIPER) as well as the technical and operational 
improvements advocated by each agency. Areas where pager and/or 
portable coverage is limited or inadequate will be noted. 

• Phase III- Field testing to determine and/ or confirm critical radio coverage 
issues with County's Public Safety paging, dispatch and operational radio 
systems. 

• Phase IV- Meetings as needed with VIPER System Manager in Raleigh to 
assess options and costs for improved VIPER coverage and expanded 
channel capacity. 

• Phase V - Recommend to 911 and Emergency Services Director and the 
County Manager locations for additional communications towers as needed 
to improve coverage in areas identified in Phase III and for expanded VIPER 
coverage. 

• Phase VI- Identify potential grant and outside funding sources. Preparation 
of grant proposals in behalf of the COUNTY is outside the scope of this 
proposal. 

• Phase VII - Initiate scheduled monthly meetings with Public Safety 
Stakeholder Group on progress of study and developing recommendations . 
Seek Input from Stakeholders about system improvement alternatives. File 
monthly Progress Reports with County Manager. 

Page 11 



032117 BCC Meeting

93

• Phase VIII - Assist 911 and Emergency Services Director and the County 
Manager in developing a strategy for implementing recommendations and 
funding mechanisms needed system improvements. 

• Phase IX - Presentation of Recommendations and Funding Strategies to 
Board of County Commissioners. 

Time Frame of Study: 
• Project will be initiated within fifteen days of Notice to Proceed from the 

COUNTY. 

• Project will conclude with presentation of project report and 
recommendations to the Board of Commissioners no later than October 15, 
2017, unless this meeting is rescheduled by the County Manager. 

Further, it is mutually agreed: 

• COUNTY will provide CONTRACTOR access to sites, system information, 
frequencies, channels, talk groups as well as access to personnel as needed 
to complete this study. 

• CONTRACTOR will not make any adjustment to equipment or in any way 
alter any operational procedures used by the COUNTY. 

• CONTRACTOR will provide all maps, draft reports, Power Point 
presentations, final reports and other presentation materials at no 
additional cost to the COUNTY. 

• Subj ect to prior approval by the County Manager, CONTRACTOR will be 
reimbursed by COUNTY for travel and lodging outside Watauga County 
which is necessary and integral to this project. Travel expenses within 
Watauga County are included in the fee paid bv the COUNTY to the 
CONTRACTOR and are not reimbursable. 

Page 12 



032117 BCC Meeting

94

EXHIBIT 2 
CONSIDERATION FOR SERVICES 

COUNTY will remit to CONTRACTOR a Consulting Fee of $18,000 (Eighteen 
Thousand Dollars), payable as follows: 

• Twenty-five percent (less a 10% retainage) payable at the completion of 
Phases I-III. 

• Twenty-five percent (less a 10% retainage) payable at the completion of 
Phases IV-V. 

• Twenty-five percent (less a 10% retainage) payable at the completion of 
Phases VI-VIII. 

• Balance of CONTRACTOR fee and retainage to be released upon 
completion of Phase IX. 

Page 13 



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

 
B.  Proposed Proclamation Naming April 1, 2017, As Watauga County Seed Library Day 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The Library is requesting the Board proclaim April 1, 2017 as Watauga County Seed Library 
Day.  The Library is beginning a seed bank and April 1st will be the kick off date.  There will be 
activities and a ribbon cutting to celebrate the occasion. 
 
Board action is requested to adopt the proclamation as presented. 
 
  

032117 BCC Meeting

95



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF WATAUGA 
 

PROCLAMATION 
WATAUGA COUNTY SEED LIBRARY DAY 

APRIL 1, 2017 
 

 
WHEREAS, the mission of the Watauga County Seed Library is to make free seeds 

available to anyone in our area who would like to grow their own food, to promote gardening 
and healthy outdoor activities; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Watauga County Seed Library also exists to provide information, 
education, and instruction about sustainable organic gardening and seed saving, as well as to 
collect historical information about seeds and plants in our region to ensure the preservation of 
our local heritage and traditions; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Watauga County Seed Library will have profound significance for our 
area and will build community resilience, self-reliance and a culture of sharing; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Watauga County Public Library and Blue Ridge Women in Agriculture 
along with the Watauga County do invite members of the community to visit the Watauga 
County Seed Library at the Watauga County Public Library on Saturday, April 1, 2017 at 3:00 
P.M. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT PROCLAIMED by the Watauga County Board of 
Commissioners, that April 1, 2017, be designated as Watauga County Seed Library Day in 
Watauga County, and all citizens be encouraged to visit the Seed Library each year on the first 
Saturday in April to donate or to borrow seeds and to support this important program in our 
community. 
 
 ADOPTED this the 21st day of March, 2017. 
 
 
 
 
 
       __________________________________ 
       John Welch, Chairman 
       Watauga County Board of Commissioners  

 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

DRAFT 

032117 BCC Meeting

96



Watauga County  

Seed Library 
Start your own garden & 

share the seeds 

KICK OFF 
Saturday, April 1st 

at 3pm 
Located in the 

 Watauga County Public 
 Library 
140 Queen St 

Boone, NC 28607 

828 264-8784  

www.arlibrary.org 

 

* Saving seeds is a great thing to do for your community and yourself.  

* When you borrow seeds from the seed library think about setting aside a few 
plants in your garden for collection seeds.   

* Then take a bit of extra time to save seeds from those plants for the seed li-
brary.  

             *  By doing this, the seed library will be more self- sustaining and 

032117 BCC Meeting

97



March 15, 2017 
Public Service Announcement  
 

The Watauga Seed Library will have its opening day on Friday, April 1st at 3 pm at the Watauga County 
Public Library.   
We will have music, poetry, information about seed saving and gardening, hands-on activity stations, 
video, a town proclamation, and a ribbon-cutting ceremony.  
Seeds will be available for the public for free beginning on this date so come one come all!  
Brought to you in partnership with Blue Ridge Women in Agriculture and the Sustainable Development 
Department at Appalachian State University.  
The Watauga County Public Library is located at 140 Queen Street in Downtown Boone a block up from 
the Mast General Store.  
The Watauga Seed Library: Share seed, grow food, spread knowledge! 
 
 

032117 BCC Meeting

98



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

 
C.  Out-of-State Travel Requests 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Sheriff’s Office 
Sheriff Hagaman is requesting Board approval for Detective Patrick Anderson to attend the 
NADDI and NPLEX leadership conference in Savannah, GA June 5, 2017 through June 8, 2017.  
Costs incurred to the County will be registration, lodging, meals, fuel, and personnel time.  
County policy requires all out-of-state travel to be approved by the Board. 
 
Board action is required to approve the out-of-state travel request. 
 
 
 
 
Parks & Recreation 
Ms. Karen Poteat, Recreation Specialist II, is requesting Board authorization for herself and Mr. 
Paul Krause, Assistant Athletic Director, to travel to Abingdon, VA.  The purpose of the trip is to 
serve the older adult population in providing transportation and assistance for a play and lunch.    
 
Board action is required to authorize the out-of-state travel. 
 
 
 
  

032117 BCC Meeting

99



032117 BCC Meeting

100

PO# VENDOR# 12139 ----------------------
Vendor Name PATRICK ANDERSON 

-----~~~~~~~~------
Address 373 HOMESTEAD DRIVE 

-----~~~~~~~~------

City/State/Zip _____ ......;;...DE;;;.;E;;.;.P_G;;.;.· A...;..P...:.•.;..;N.;;..C...;.,2:..:;8.;;..61;.:8 ____ _ 

ACCOUNT# 

234310-431200 

23431 0-431200 

Net 
Amount 

' 

$596.00 

Amount Taxable at 

2% (Food) 

-

NC State Tax 

Department Head's Authorization Fo r Payment : 

FINANCE OFFICE USE ONLY 

Amount Taxable at Amount Taxab le at 
6.75% 7.00% 

- -

County Tax 

REMIT# ------

Amount Taxable at 
Non-Taxable INVOICE# & DESCRIPTION 

7.25% 

118.00 
TRAVEUSPEC.OPS/meals al Training. 

478.00 TRAVEUSPEC.OPS/Lodging and parking al 
Training. 

2017 NPLEX Conference (Prescription Drugs 
to Heroin to Meth) 

Is requesting to pay with PC 
for Lodginq & Parkinq 

RETURN TO WSO 

- 596.00 CO SALES TAX CODE __ 

Total $596.00 

COPY FOR 0 Travel 0 Sales Tax 0 Fixed As ets 0 Insurance 0 Grants 0 Payroll 0 Dept ---- O Other ___ _ 



032117 BCC Meeting

101

Submit by Email J Print Form 

Watauga County Updated I-12-os 

Travel Authorization and Travel Advance Request 

03/07/2017 

Name:Patrick Anderson Title:Detective Department:wcso 

Destination: Savannah, GA Meeting Dates:06/05/2017 to 06/08/2017 

Departure Date: 06/05/17 
Return Date: 06/09/17 

Is this out of state travel? ~ Yes DNo 
If yes, Board of County Commissioners 
approval is required and must be signed by Time:8: 00 ~AM[JPM Time: 13:00 DAM~PM the County Manager. 

Purpose of Trip: NADDI and NPLEX Combined Training Conference 

Overnight Accommodations Required? !J Yes CJ No Rate per night/person $115· OO x 4 

Name ofHoteVMotel Desoto Hilton Government Discount fEJ Yes CINo 

Method of Transportation: 

Cost$ ~ County Vehicle CJ Personal Vehicle CJ Air 

Cl Other 
Explanation 

. , 
'~c . _, 
t~'!fuit-lfli r, · rm ., <" 

i 
. 0-.• J J -.....,,.!f'· t1! ·.t . .l-' . 

*REGISTRATION FEES: 
Please indicate meals and/or banquets SO .(JJ included in registration fee $ 
MEALS: Breakfast $8.00 x4 

Lunch $10.00 x3 
Dinner $16.00 x4 

*LODGING: Single Rate $115.00 x4 
*Other Parking 18.00 

Total 

* Receipts Required for Reimbursement 

:; ·, < J •• :··.i· ,., ... 

Are funds requested in advance: 

I!EJYes IDNo Amount$118.00 

Form is Mathematically Con·ect: 

If settlement has not been made on this 
advance within 20 working days after 
completion of travel, I authorize this 
amount to be deducted from my next 

D Yes D Approved as corrected 

Finance Staff 

Date 

paycheck. 

Employee 

03/07/17 

Date 

·rz\.(rJ~ 

oo .OD 
24.00 
30.00 
64.00 

460.00 

18.00 

_.5.9&:00-

County Manager (Out of State Travel) 

Date 



032117 BCC Meeting

102



032117 BCC Meeting

103

~
0 NPLEX ~ National Precursor Log Exchenge 

2017 NPLEx Conference Agenda 
Your participation in all events is encouraged and most of all appreciated. 

June 5-7th, 2017 

Hilton Savannah Desoto 

Monday • June 5, 2017 • Hilton Savannah Desoto 

Conference Registration (Hotel Lobby) 

5:30pm-7:oopm Networking Hospitality 

*Dinner on your own 

Tuesday • June 6, 2017 • 

s:oo am Registration I Coffee Service 

9 :oo am- 9: 10 am 
Welcome! 
Charlie Cichon, Executive Director, NADDI 

9:10am- 9:30 am 
Opening Remarks 

9:30 am- 10:30 am 
Overview of Prescription Drugs to Heroin to Meth 
Lisa Mcelhaney, NADDI President, Retired Broward County SO (FL) 

10:30 am-10:45 am Break 

NPLEx LE Live Demo 

Krista McCormick, Client Relationship Manager, Appriss 
10:45 am- 11 :45 pm Dave Conn, Product Director, Appriss 

Dave and Knsta will do an in depth oveTview of the featuTes and capabilities of NPLEx 
including Hve seaTches. 

11:45 am- 1:15pm Lunch 

NPLEx Legal Session 

1:15pm-2:15pm 
Open fm·um d1scussion of diffeTent states' meth laws and how they].'e applied. Also, 
NPLEx testimony in coul't and NPLEx lang uage fo1· sem·ch wan·an ts will be covered. 

Prosecution Case Study - A case against an independent pharmacy in KY 

AUSA Ron Walker & Katie Crytzer, US Attorney's Office Eastern District ofKY 

2: 15 pm-3: 15 pm Ron and Katie will pl'Ovide a fi·esh perspective in the utilization of NPLEx, discussing a 
1·ecent fedeTal case against an independent phaTmacy inKY who was the biggest selle1· of 
PSE in the state fol' 3 years in a Tow. The phannacy was also notorious fol' filling out of 
state pl'esCTiptions. 

3:15pm- 3:30pm Break 

3:30pm- 4:30pm Prosecution Case Study Continued 

5:30pm-7:00pm Networking Hospitality Event 

*Dinner on your own 



032117 BCC Meeting

104

~
0 NPLEX ~ National Precursor Log Exchange 

Wednesday • June 7, 2017 • 

s:oo am Coffee Service 

Counterfeit Fentanyl 

9:00 am- 10:00 am Dan Zsido, Retired Lt. , Pinellas Co SO (FL) 

The True Story of Pablo Escobar 

Retired DEA Agents Steve Murphy & Javier Pena 
10:00 am- 12:00 pm You may have seen TV shows and documentan."es, OJ" read books about the woTld's 

wealthiest, and m ost violent drug trafficke1~ but now y ou ha ve the oppol'tumly to heal' the 
l'eal st01y of what happen ed in the in vestigation of Pablo Escobal' and the Medellin Cal'tel 

12:00 am- 1:00pm Lunch (provided) 

NPLEx Case Study 

1:oopm- 2:oopm 
Chris Wiscarson, Detective, Christiansburg PD (VA) 

Sam Moore, Detective, Christiansburg PD (VA) 

Chns and Sam will shal'e thei1· success of using NPLEx f01·phannacy interdictions in VA. 

NPLEx Case Study 

2:oopm- 3:oopm Case Gilbert, K9 Patrol Officer, Angola PD (IN) 

Case will talk about how he uses NPLEx as a p1·oactive l'oad guy discussing his favonle 
tricks. 

3:oopm- 3:15pm Closing Remarks 



032117 BCC Meeting

105

NADDI Southern Re 

Location 

Venue: Hilton Savannah DeSoto 

(https://www.naddi.org/venues/hilton-savannah

desoto/) 

Venue Phone: 912-232-9000 

Venue Website: www.desotohi lton.com (www.desotoh il ton .com) 

.U Address: 

15 East Li berty Street, Savannah, Georgia, 31401, United States 

'• .. 

; .. '•.• ~-· 

I Allf!f.!. (}f"lOVf·, 
H/l.ll HO.~,n _:, t\fP.. 

Go gle 

1' -t , 

(," 

' 

Forsyth P;;rk 

V!C l (!fdA N 
P!Sf!~iC1 /tr.s.· 

he Catr1edrol of 
St. John the Bapt1st 

~ l~{,f)K;.!/ 

..:. . ~; ;y ...... . 
. ...... , .. ,\t 

I· A o} T ~' 10 !'· 

1 (h!lp~Wfl1ilB~;google.com/maps?ll,32. 074159,-81 . 092892&z,14&t,m&hl,en- 1_, , c 
t.Giij~npoliell]ls11P>Mi)J741589,-81 .0928925, 14z/data,!1 Om1 !1 e1 !1 2b1 ?smllllaj>;if:tiMlJll;\llklii'~~~] $ 

Wednesday, lune 7, 2017 

Noon -Train ing Registration 

1 :00 pm Welcom ing Remarks 

Adrienne Baker, NADDI Georgia Chapter President 

DEA Tacti ca l Diversion Operati ons/Approach to Crimin al Diversion 

Supervisory Special Agent Vann Winn, DEA 

Project DAN, Deaths Avoided by Naloxone 

Lori Murphy, Director of Program Development, MAG Foundation 

Coun te rfeit Pharm aceut ica ls 

Dan Zsido, Lieutenant (Retired) Pinellas County Sheriff's Office (FL) 

NADDI Nationa l Training & Education Coord iantor 

5:00 pm Tra ining ends on Day 1 

Thursday, lune 8, 2017 

7:30 am Coffee Service 

8:00 am Classes commence fot- Day 2 

Noon - Networking luncheon provided 

https://www.naddi. org/events/naddi-southern-regional-training/ 

Page 2 of 4 

3/7/201 7 



032117 BCC Meeting

106



032117 BCC Meeting

107

PATRICK ANDERSON/: 
', E~JOYASPECiAL' R'OOM ' 
,. UPGRADE i=OJt 

Your Room information: 

1 KING BED CITYVIEW, 
Non-Smoking 

Your Plauli~formation: 

NADDI CONFERENCE 

Rate per night: 115.00 USD 

Rooms: Total for Stay per Room 

Guests: Adult Rate: 460.00 USD 
........ ----- ,, ~ 

Check In: Jun 05 4:00 PM Taxes: 83.80 USD 
•<·0'''·••·-~·••••••-••••••••A-•••-••••••-••-• ---·-· ·····-

Check Out: Jun 0911:00 AM Total : 543.80 USD 

Total for Stay : 543.80 USD 

The con?ftJrts of'hon1e even -when you 're away. 

We want to make sure your arrival is the perfect beginning to a 
relaxing stay, so let us prepare your room ahead of time with any extra 
touches that would make it feel more like home*. 

2 



032117 BCC Meeting

108

Watauga County 
Updated 1-12-05 

Travel Authorization and Travel Advance Request 

Name: Keron J. Poteat Title: Recreation Specialist If Department: WCPR 

Destination: Meeting Dates: 
March 23 , 2017 

Is this out of state travel? Yes x No Departure Date 3.23.17 
Return Date: 3.23.17 

If yes, Board of County Commissioners 
approval is required and must be signed by 
the County Manager. Time: 10:15 a.m. 

Time 5:30p.m. 
Purpose of Trip: 
Senior Trip to the Barter Theater 
Overnight Accommodations Required? No Rate per night/person $ 

Name of Hotel/Motel Government Discount 0 Yes 0No 

Method of Transportation: 

Cost$ - X County Vehicle 0 Personal Vehicle 

0 Other 
Explanation 

Please indicate meals and/or banquets 
included in fee 

Total 

* Receipts Required for Reimbursement 

Are funds requested in advance: 

0 Yes D No Amount 
$ __ _ 

Form is Mathematically Correct: 

0 Yes 0 Approved as corrected 

Finance Staff 

Date 

If settlement has not been made on this 
advance within 20 working days after 
completion of travel, I authorize this 
amount to be deducted from my next 
paycheck. 

0Air 

I believe this trip to be necessary and 
beneficial to Watauga County and funds 
were provided for this purpose in this 
departments appropriate budget account. 

~ 
Department Head or County Manager 

County Manager (Out of State Travel) 

Date 



032117 BCC Meeting

109

Updated 1-12-05 
Watauga County 

Travel Authorization and Travel Advance Request 

Name: Paul F. Krause 

Destination: 

Is this out of state travel? Yes x No 
If yes, Board of County Commissioners 
approval is required and must be signed by 
the County Manager. 

Purpose of Trip: 
Senior Tri to the Barter Theater 

Department: WCPR 

Meeting Dates: 
March 23,2017 

Departure Date 3 .23 .17 
Return Date: 3.23 .17 

Time: 10: 15 a.m. 
Time 5:30 .m. 

Overnight Accommodations Required? No Rate per night/person $ 

Name ofHotel/Motel ______________ _____ Government Discount DYes D No 

Method ofTransportation: 

Cost$ X County Vehicle D Personal Vehicle 

D Other 
Ex lanation 

Please indicate meals and/or banquets 
~c~ded~ fue 

*Other 
Gas Card 

Total 

* Receipts Required for Reimbursement 

Are funds requested in advance: 

D Yes D No Amount 
$ __ _ 

Form is Mathematically Correct: 

D Yes D Approved as corrected 

Finance Staff 

Date 

If settlement has not been made on this 
advance within 20 working days after 
completion of travel, I authorize this 
amount to be deducted from my next 
paycheck. 

Employ~e { 
\.3flt..J. ( 7 

Date 

DAir 

I believe this trip to be necessary and 
beneficial to Watauga County and funds 
were provided for this purpose in this 
departments appropriate budget account. · 

~~ Dep ment Head or County Manager 

County Manager (Out of State Travel) 

Date 



032117 BCC Meeting

110

S2bt Dance Lessons in Six eek8~~ 
~ hursday, March 2J 

$35 fee (covers ticket, transportation, & lunch!) 

Join Watauga County Parks & Recreation for thi 
heartwarming comedy at Barter Theatre, Stage ~~---

When a former chorus boy agrees to teach an 
elderly widow a series of dances, both escape 

their lonely lives, finding friendship. 

SCHEDULE 
• 10:15am 

• 12 noon 

• 1:30pm. 

• 2:00pm 

• 4~00pm 

• 5:30pm. 

Leave Boone 

Lunch at Peppermill (included! 

Arrive at Barter Theater 

Play Begins 

Depart Abingdon for Boon.e 

Arrive Back in Boone 
Register now! Space is limited! 

To register or for more information 
Watauga County Parks and Recreation 
231 Complex Drive Boone, NC 28607 

828.264.9511 
keron. poteat@watgov. org 



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
D. Boards and Commissions  

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
CCC&TI 
The Caldwell Community College and Technical Institute (CCC&TI) Board of Trustees recommends 
the reappointment of Mr. Lowell Younce to the Board.  His term expires June 30, 2017.   
 
This is a first reading; therefore, no action is required. 
 
 
 
Watauga County Housing Trust 
The terms of some of the organizations appointed to the Watauga Community Housing Trust 
(WCHT) need to be renewed.  The Commissioners appoint organizations to the Board; the 
organizations designate individuals to serve.  Terms to be renewed are: 
 
High Country Association of Realtors – 2 years 
ASU – 2 years 
Northwestern Regional Housing Authority – 2 years 
Board of Education – 2 years 
High Country Home Builders Association – 1 year 
WAMY – 2 years 
 
 
 
Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee 
Stevie John, Regional Ombudsman with High Country Council of Governments’ Area Agency on 
Aging, requests that Ms. Angelina Greene be reappointed to the Watauga County Adult Care Home 
Community Advisory Committee for three-year terms.   
 
This is a first reading and, therefore, action is not required. 
 
 
 
Several volunteer applications have recently been received for various Boards and Commissions and 
are included in your packet. 
 
 
 
  

032117 BCC Meeting

111



032117 BCC Meeting

112

Caldwell Community College 
and Technical Institute 
Dr. Mark[. Poarch, President 

February 20, 2017 

Mr. John Welch, Chairman 
Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
814 West King St. , Suite 205 
Boone, NC 28607 

,' 

RE: Reappointment of Lowell Younce to the Caldwell Community College and Technical 
Institute Board of Trustees 

Dear Chairman Welch: 

>'\ 

) 

I am writing on behalf of the Caldwell Community College and Technical Institute (CCC&TI) Board of 
Trustees regarding the reappointment of Lowell Younce to the Board, as his term expires June 30, 2017. 
Lowell has been an extremely valuable member of this Board for the past four years. He currently serves 
as a member of the Board ' s Building and Grounds Committee and Policy and Legislative Committee. 
Lowell has always demonstrated an unwavering commitment to this Board, the college, and students 
through his faithful attendance at Board meetings, functions , and college events. 

Lowell's love for Watauga County and his focus on providing opportunities for Watauga County citizens 
is quite evident and has been very instrumental in helping CCC&TI move forward with quality programs 
and services to meet the needs of our community. He is a true champion of education and works tirelessly 
to create opportunities that will improve the lives of Watauga County students. 

In our current challenging economic times, it is imperative to maintain stability within the college's Board 
of Trustees. As a member of the Board ' s Building and Grounds Committee, Lowell has been actively 
involved in the planning and development of the new Student Services Center on the Watauga Campus. 
He is very familiar with the project and the desired outcomes that will greatly enhance the Watauga 
Campus and provide tremendous opp01tunities for students. The reappointment of Lowell will help 
provide the needed consistency for the building project and help ensure a strong, viable governing board 
for CCC&TI. 

I appreciate your consideration to reappoint Lowell Younce to the CCC&TI Board of Trustees. 

~ely, j 
Larry ~V~~Ior, ~1! 
CCC&TI Board of Trustees 

Caldwell Campus Watauga Campus 

\ 
'_) 

2855 Hickory Blvd., Hudson, North Carolina 28638 
828 .726.2200 Fax: 828.726 .2216 

Post Office Box 33 18, Boone, North Carolina 28607 
828 .297.3811 Fax: 828.297.4174 

www.cccti.edu 

CCC&TI is an equal opportunity educator and employer 



1

Anita.Fogle

From: Joe Furman
Sent: Friday, March 10, 2017 8:27 AM
To: Deron.Geouque
Cc: Anita.Fogle; Scott Eggers (seggers@propanetank.com)
Subject: Boards and Commissions
Attachments: WCHT Membership and Terms and Statement.docx

Deron, 
The terms of some of the organizations appointed to the Watauga Community Housing Trust (WCHT) need to be renewed. The 
Commissioners appoint organizations to the Board; the organizations designate individuals to serve. Pertinent excerpt from 
WCHT Bylaws is attached as well as a listing of the organizations and terms.  Terms to be renewed are: 
 
High Country Association of Realtors – 2 years 
ASU – 2 years 
Northwestern Regional Housing Authority – 2 years 
Board of Education – 2 years 
High Country Home Builders Association – 1 year 
WAMY – 2 years 
 
Please add this item to the March 21st Commissioners’ meeting agenda. 
Thanks. 
Joe 
 
Joseph A. Furman, AICP 
Director, Watauga County Planning & Inspections and Economic Development 
331 Queen Street, Suite A 
Boone, NC 28607 
(828) 265-8043 
(828) 265-8080 (fax) 
 joe.furman@watgov.org  
 

032117 BCC Meeting

113



WCHT MISSION STATEMENT 
 
The mission of the Watauga Community Housing Trust is to promote the economic viability of 
the Watauga community by facilitating efficient, quality housing.  Availability of such housing 
will enable employers to attract and retain an adequate and talented workforce. 
 

 
WCHT MEMBERSHIP AND TERMS 

 

Appointed: (with expiration year shown) 

1. High Country Association of Realtors (Laurie Phillips) 2017 4th term 
2. ASU (Tim Burwell) 2017 4th term 
3. Town of Boone (Lynne Mason) 2018 4th term 
4. NWRHA (Ned Fowler) 2017 4th term 
5. ARHCS (Amy Crabbe) 2018 4th term 
6. Board of Education (Scott Elliott) 2017 4th term 
7. High Country Home Builders Association (Buck Wellborn) 2016 3rd term 
8. WAMY (Melissa Soto) 2017 3rd term 
9. Habitat for Humanity (Alex Hooker) 2018 2nd term 

Elected: (with expiration year shown) 

1. Scott Eggers 2017 (3rd elected term) 
2. Chelsea Garrett 2017 (3rd elected term) 
3. Joe Furman 2017 (3rd elected term) 

 

The Directors shall be broken into term groups, as nearly equal in number as possible, to 
serve in for initial staggered terms of two and three years. After the expiration of the initial term 
of each Appointed Director, the Appointed Director may serve one (I) additional two-year term 
without requiring reappointment by the Watauga Board of County Commissioners upon approval 
prior to the additional term by a majority of the Directors then in office. After the second term, 
if applicable, the Appointed Director may be reappointed by the Watauga County Board of 
County Commissioners for additional two-year terms with a limit of six (6) terms total. After the 
expiration of the initial term of each Elected Director, the Elected Director may be reelected for 
additional two-year terms with a limit of six (6) terms total by a majority of the Directors then in 
office in the same manner set forth in Article II, Section 3 below pertaining to appointment and 
election of directors. If any Director does not wish to continue to serve at any time, including 
between terms when he is eligible to be approved or reelected by the Directors for a successive 
term, as applicable, he may resign and his vacancy shall be filled as set herein below in Article 
II, Section 5. 
 

032117 BCC Meeting

114



032117 BCC Meeting

115

Brenda Lyerly 
Chair of the Bomd 

468 New Market Blvd. 
Boone, NC 28607 

March 3, 2017 

Anita J. Fogle 
Clerk to the Board 

Johnny Riddle 
Vice-Chair 

www.regiond.org 

814 West King Street Suite 205 
Boone, NC 28607 

Dear Ms. Fogle: 

Chris Jones 
Secretary 

Voice: 800-735-8262 

,..., / 

_:) 

~~s 
/ '\ 

CJ\\ 

Valerie Jaynes 
Treasurer 

Ph'3ne: 828-265.5434 
Fax: 828-265-5439 

> 

The term of appointment of Ms. Angelina Greene the Watauga County Adult Care Home 
Community Advisory Committee will expire March 4, 2017. She has indicated his desire to be 
reappointed for an additional three-year term. 

Please submit Ms. Greene's name to the Commissioners for their consideration and let me know 
their decision at your earliest convenience. The request for renomination is attached. 

Stevie John, 
Regional Long Term Care Ombudsman 

Enclosure 
Renomination form 

11te High Count'!)' Council of Gotoemments wi!! be the leader· in initiating and providing solutions to 1·egional and local ciUillenges, supporting a /night future for the High Count'!)'. 



032117 BCC Meeting

116

RENOMINATION FORM 

LONG TERM CARE 
COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

Business Address _____________ _ Phone (W) ______ _ 

Zip Code _______ _ 

Email Address. __ -7'.::::::.,:------------------------

~ccupation ___ ~7-~~~;~~~~~~·-----------------~ 
Number of hours available per month for this position ___ _,_}-=D=-----¥-/L'(>+L"u .......... t"""~------

Education c:ZW J. &::Jn r;v { 

Business and civic experience and skills L/22P/{s ctt_, Wr..-e a ~ It' c 

al&.tr-ab- do%~ dovd-~.c cfD-IUecaf 
~vt~+ · -7o ~ou.J. -to 

Areas of expertise and interest/skills W£ ~fu z;t.f r k ~+-~~ 

tn :::b:z 0 {W~ <>1-k:d-:t tfBdl~~ 
THE F~LL~WING PERS~NS ARE EXCLUDED BY LEGISLATI~N FR~M S VING ON 
THE COMMITTEE: 

1. Persons or immediate family member of persons with a financial interest in a home served 
by a committee. 

2. An employee or governing board member or immediate family member of an employee or 
governing board member of a home served by a committee. (A person paid by a home as a 
consultant is considered an employee). 

3. The immediate family member of a patient in a home served by a committee. An 
"immediate family member" is defined as mother, father, sister, brother, spouse, child, 
grandmother, grandfather, and in-laws for the above. 

I CERTIFY THAT NONE OF THE EXCLUSIONS LISTED ABOVE APPLY TO ME. I 
UNDERSTAND THAT I MUST N~TIFY THE OMBUDSMAN IMMEDIATELY IF MY 
SITUATION CHANGES WITH RESPECT TO THE ABOVE EXCLUSI~NS. 

;r Date ~~ ~-[t] 



032117 BCC Meeting

117

Volunteer Applleatlon 
Watauga County Boards And Commissions 

If you are a Watauga County resident, at least 1,8 years old, and willing to volunteer your time and 
expertise to your community, piease complete-theapplicatiortbelowan&eliclt.on Pril'ltFcrm. 
Please sign aild mall or fax to: 

Welaugsrco~ecmm~ane~romca 
B.<m>WesfKJngStteet;·:Silitf;20&

Boone, NC 28607 
Phone: (828) 265-8000 
Fax (828) 264-323.0 

. ' 
I 
I 
I 

2 3 u\6 NOV 

-.,, Cbc,'s+illl-=< Ba'~ 
Home Address: . . l 0 r'] ..- I M a ( l C) \A 

---

City: ~o'tl~ Zip: l &6o7 
Telephone: (H) 3) g.- 71:'( ~ I(, f;4 IY'/) (Fax) 

--------
Email: ) C \-r LA t,V\ ~ \A·~\\ 1 C C LA/\ 

..Q, 'Vv\ \) eat 
Job Title: 

In Order To Assure County wide Repr~sentatlon Please Indicate Your Township Of Residence: 

QBalcj Mountain Ostony Fork ®'Watauga 

()New River ()Brushy Fork OCove Creek 

QBeaver Dam QMeat Camp ()Shawne-ehaw 

0Biue RICige QB!QWlogROok ()tauaillCreak 

QEik QN~'Rll'k ·o:aaone 

In addition, Please Indicate If You Live In One Of The Fo)lowinQ. Areas: 
0 Foscoe-Grandfather Community 0 Valle Cruds Historic District 

0 Howards Creek Watershed 0 Winklers Creek Watershed 

Qsouth Fotk New River WateiShed 0 Extraterritorial Atea 

We Ask Your Help In AssuTing Diversity Of Membership By Age, Gender, And Race, By Answering The 
Following Ques!lons 

3 
~ · 

Gender 

QMale 

~emale 

Ethnic Background 

QAfrlcan American 0 Hispanic 

~ucaslan Qotll&r 
0Native American 

Please List (In Order Of Preference) The Boards/Commissions On Wliich You Would Be Willing To Serve. 

'\ 
I 
I • 

., 

'-~ 0\\-"'-1'§1- Mcca \ b \-y S-" ,"-_ __!;,a rcL_of Tws -j e_e S 
2
•1 1 LA V ~ V\ 1 \Q_ ~ \ ~~'-'-!:-'--";, ~"'--'\/\,_,__ ___ _ 

3 1 '0~ \, (\ ' ' 
1 \'JL- c ~--fl. a.\\~\}\ G~ \1\1\ VV\ I '? s I c il\ 



032117 BCC Meeting

118

Work 
Expelienca: 

Volunteer 
Experience: 

other 
Experience: 

Other 
Comments: 

Signature: 

Volunteer Application 
Watauga County Boards And Commissions 

(Continued) 

Date: \\ /:J 3/J ~ 
.---1 . ""'-::-'Res..,..,et-Fo-r:m---.] 



032117 BCC Meeting

119

Volunteer Application 
Watauga County Boards And Commissions 

If you are a Watauga County resident, at least 18 years old, and willing to volunteer your time and 
expertise to your community, please complete the application below and dick on Print Form. 
Please sign and mail or fax to: 

Watauga County Commissioners' Office 
814 West King Street, Suite 205 

Boone, NC 28607 
Phone: (828) 26~8000 

Fax: (828) 264-3230 

Name: 

HomeAddress: 3~/J ttJ-u.p'( {jf2JVf 
City: 6bodt Zip: 

Telephone: (H) fbZ~ -113 ~!JJ5J (W) fi>Zi/:r21PZ~~/) (Fax) ____ _ 

Email: ±I r">) ,VJt rr:t~ f3r01; ) ./~,'~ 
Place of Employment: t2.t; /) fl _ vv '5J.J>t, 'b MH! vP1i'f 
Job Title: ~brl-

In Order To Assure County wide Representation Please Indicate Your Township Of Residence: 

QBald Mountain Ostony Fork Qwatauga 

QNew River QBrushy Fork QCove Creek 

QBeaver Dam QMeat Camp QShawneehaw 

0Biue Ridge QBiowing Rock QLaurel Creek 

0Eik QNorth Fork ~ne 

In addition, Please Indicate If You Live In One Of The Following Areas: 

0 Foscoe-Grandfather Community 0 Valle Crucis Historic District 

0 Howards Creek Watershed 0 Winklers Creek Watershed 

QSouth Fork New River Watershed 0 Extraterritorial Area 

We Ask Your Help In Assuring Diversity Of Membership By Age, Gender, And Race, By Answering The 
Following Questions 

Gender 

@)Male 

QFemale 

Ethnic Background 

QAfrlcan American 0 Hispanic 

Caucasian 00ther 

QNative American 

Please List (In Order Of Preference) The Boards/Commissions On Which You Would Be Willing To Serve. 

\o 



032117 BCC Meeting

120

Work 
Experience: 

Volunteer 
Experience: 

Other 
Experience: 

Other 
Comments: 

Volunteer Application 
Watauga County Boards And Commissions 

(Continued) 

Please list any work, volunteer, and/or other experience you would like to have considered in the review of your application. 

p~ r!) tt. vv~ l1t.1 A-7-r"f 

{6;.-wro )v1t%-~ ) tf:tff (f)fh/11-t--#L 

~)2~JZ- tu~7 

I D} 1"115 - "1) ZtJI'Z-

vo~urf1WtiJ z, 3 1Jr11>~ y/GfK__ ) rJ 7»-G- !J ~p 8Utff>&¥11' 1-(fy;.t>#/~ 
vf!J J-VN{ 6UUf) M J q 0 d- i fi) Z: f:JU}it¥(;, }6>/lv'ff[l)it->q 1 rl w'/ff~ 

j: /}Y1 6-"xf/?#r1tfdi JJt?t?-1) W~Yl /6.
1 

>rfJW'I) ~ t)/Jir/3-NI;?B£> f1-r/ [j 

/liG f/)IY)r'Jfl16f) f/J P£-t~;/Je rottf- ?fi!vtJ·/}(_) ;/ 7~1>/Jr(f fh./JJ 

t~f()IJJ)!J'tf 

~~·. 
Signature: 

------~~~~----------
Date: 

P~lnt Form. J Reset Form 



032117 BCC Meeting

121

Volunteer Application 
Watauga County Boards And Commissions 

If you are a Watauga County resident, at least 18 yean~ old, and willing to volunteer your time and 
expertise to your community, please complete the application below and click on Print Form. . · _..;..--
Please sign and mall or fax to: ""'"1 ./>~ 

~:;.- _,.... 

Watauga County Commlsslonflrs' omce 
814 West King Street, Sulfe 205 

Boone, NC 28607 
Phone: (828) 265-8000 

Fax: (828) 2fU.3230 

Nama: Thomas W. (Tom) Fisher 

Home Address: 385 Kellwood Drive 

City: Boone Zip: 28607 

Telephone: (H) 828 262 5451 CN>N/A (Fax) 

~()'I 

\. 

\ 

-------
Email: fishertw@appstate.edu 

Place of Employment: retired from Appalachian State Univ. 

Job Tille: former Exec. Director, Educational Outreach and Summer Prog. 

In Order To Assure County wide Representation Please Indicate Your Township Of Residence: 

Q Bald Mountain 0 Stony Fori< 0 Watauga 

0 New River O Brushy Fori< OCove Creek 

O Beaver Dam O Meat Camp 0 Shawneehaw 

0 Blue Ridge O Blowing Rock 0 Laurel Creek 

0 Elk 0North Fori< @Boone 

In addition, Please Indicate If You Live In One Of The Following Areas: 

0 Foscoe-Granclfater Community 0 Valle Crucis Hlstorio District 

0 Howards Creek Watershed 0 Wlnklers Creek Watershed 

OSouth Fori< New River Watershed 0 Extraterritorial Area 

We Ask Your Help In Assuring Diversity Of Membership By Age, Gender, And Race, By Answering The 
Following Questions 

Gender 

0Mala 

0Famale 

Ethnic Background 

0Afrlcan American 0 Hispanic 

®caucasian 0 Olher 

O Native American 

Please List (In Order Of Preference) The Boards/Commissions On Which You Would Be Willing To Serve. 

1. Caldwell Community College Advisory Committee 

-2. Caldwell Community College Board Of Trustees 

3. 

1. '?l \)\~ I \ 



032117 BCC Meeting

122

Volunteer Application 
Watauga County Boards And Commissions 

(Continued) 

Please list any work, volunteer, and/or other experience you would like to have considered In the review of your application. 

r e wor rng or ppa ac ran, e t e eve opment o t e ppa ac ran earnrng 
Alliance which extended Appalachian degree completion programs into ten 
Community Colleges in western North Carolina. I worked closely with leadership at 
Caldwell CC during the development of the Appalachian State University Center on 
the CCC& Tl main campus and actively promoted undergraduate degree completion 

work and graduate programs in that area. 
Experience: 

Volunteer 
Experience: 

Other 
Experience: 

Other 
Comments: 

Undergra uate Degree N S , Recreation Admrnistration 1973 
MA Political Science Appalachian State University 1980 
Ed.S Higher Education Administration Appalachian State University, 1988 

Date: //- "] tJ 2 0 I h 

Print Form ·1 ResetForm J 



032117 BCC Meeting

123

DEC/ 01 / 2016/ THU 12 :33 PM ASU-Student Conduct FAX No . 828 262 4997 P. 002 

Volunteer Application 
Watauga County Boards And Commissions 

If you are a livstaua:t County l"'f$1dont, 11tleaet 18 yoorn old, el'10 willing tg volunreeryourllme and 
ii.xpeTtltse to your community, pl$aae complete thG sppliO!Itlon below and click on Prtnt Form. 
Pleasa rllgn anc mail or fax to: 

Watau.oe County Commisslonertl Offia~ 
814 West King Street, Sv/1& 205 

Bocm!il, NC 28t:IOT 
Phone: (82ll} 2~8000 

Fax: (828) 264-3230 

Nama: James A Lorello 

HomeAddre$$: 292 Fieldstream Drive 

e~~: Boone 

Telephone: (H) 727-204-3334 

Zip: 28607 

(W)828-262-2704 (fax) -------
Enmil: jalorello@gmail.com 

Place or Employment: Appalachian State 

Job Title: Assistant Director of Student Conduct 

In Order To Assure County Wide Reprseentatlon Please lndlaate Your Township Of Residence: 

QBaJd Mountain 0Stony Fork Owatau~ 
0New River QBNahy F!ll'k QCove Creek 

QBeaver Dem QMeat Camp Qshawneehaw 

0Biue Rlclge QBlowing Rock Ql.aurel Creek 

QEik QNorth Fork QBoone 

In !addition; PloaBII lndloatc If Yau Llvo In One Of The FollOWing Areas: 

0 Foscoe-Grnndfalher Community 0 Valle Cruol~ Hiatwio Dletrl.:t 

0 Ho¥1ards Creek WiJtershed 0 Winlders Cr-k Wate~c:d 
Qsouth Fork New Riwtl' Waterahlld Q ~rritorial ~CI 

We Ask Your Help In Assuring Diversity Of Member&hip By Age, Gender, And Race, By An&Werino Tl'le 
Following QuestJons 

Gender 
(!)Male 

QFemale 

Ethnic: Background 
QAfrican Amertcan QHiapanic 

E)CeUCiililian 001her 

0 Native American 

Pleatile Lislt (lr1 Order Of Preforonce) The 5oard!;;IOi:lmmi3alona On Whigh You WOUld De Willing To serve. 

1.jJuvenile Crime Prevention Council (Jcpc)Juvenlle Crime Prevention CEJ 

RECEIVED 12-01- ' 16 11: 34 FROM- 8282624997 TO- P0002/0003 



032117 BCC Meeting

124

DEC/ 01 / 2016/ THU 12 :33 PM ASU-Student Conduct FAX No . 828 262 4997 P. 003 

Volunteer Application 
Watauga County Boards And Commissions 

(COntinued) 

Plc:13se list :!my Worn, vclunt9er, lUldlor other experianCG you wouiG Ill<$ to hSVfl COI'Jeidered In the review of your appllcat1on. 

!Assistant Director. Office of Student Conduct, Appalachian State- September 2014-
Present 
Serve as a Conduct Review Officer reviewing and adjudicating student behavior Also 
serve on the crisis response on the Dean of Students team. 

wort< Coordinator, University Housing, Appalachian State- July 2012-September 20~4 
Experience: 

VOlunteer 
Elcparfshcll: 

Other 
~orience; 

Otflar 
Comments: 

Hall Director, Office of Residence Life, Georgetown University- June 2011-July 2012 

National Association of Student Personnel Administrators (NASPA), Men and 
Masculinities Knowledge Community Co-Chair, 2014- Present 
Work on creating initiatives to support college men. 

Bradford Park Boys Group 
I have volunteered with a local church initiative since 2012 off and on to help support 
healthy masculinity of a local group. 

Men on the Mountain 
A student organization at Appalachian State that 1 advise centered on Mentorship and 
cr9ating Healthy Masculinity of young men. 

Education: 
Doctor of Education, Educational leedership, UNC Greensboro -Anticipated May 
2018 
Dissertation Title: Disrupting Masculinity and Patriarchy: Stories of Men in Recovery 
My work centers on the development of masculinity and hypermasculinity in young 
men and the harms this may cause to both themselves and others. 

Master of Arts, College Student Development, Appalachian State - May 2011 

Bachelor of Arts, Religious Studies; Minor: Anthropology, University of South Florida -
May 2009 

Really intereeted in finding more avenues in the community to continue my work with 
young men. Currently at Appalachian I Elm working on initiatives to discuss 
masculinity with college men, but the real work is with younger groups. 

sonarurn r 
----;~-------------------

,~~nlU@~I 
RECEIVED 12-01- ' 16 11: 34 FROM- 8282624997 TO - P0003/0003 



032117 BCC Meeting

125

Volunteer Application 
Watauga County Boards And Commissions ;.---<\ 

If you are a Watauga County resident, at least 18 years old, and will ing to volunteer your time and , '\ ;~ .• 
~~==s~; ~~~r :~:~~~~lease complete the application below and click on Print Fonn. , .. /.~, JY•;.;,\' : > 

Watauga County Commissioners' Office · tt:iJ7 ,(\\~ .'~ · j )\\ 
814 West King Street, Suite 205 - -::-,:;::./ \ [..\)' \~" \ 

Boone, NC 28607 · ' '""' 1. ' '"/ /' ~ .) 
\\\\ c\ , / " / 

Phone: (828) 265-8000 , \ \ \ ~\.>J / 7 

Fax: (828) 264-3230 '~ ~~.\\~ " 

0tUvible_ \ \· . 
.·, \ ,r"' 

Name: 2-ev._ee 1\' .... _.;:~,.A 
./ ,. 

/.~r /tOJ Uwl-<r{)eo I 12) 
' \ / 

Home Address: 

City: Zip: 

Telephone: (H) Jof 777tfzt:... (W) (Fax) 
----------------

Email: r~ee . .tLI~ SV\1)<}. (.o.,.._ 

Placa of Employment: )J {A ..;... Je_ /P- e.j/Vo;J!uy.J. 
/I 

Job Title: AJ""''~ 'JJro...f(U€_ )5 { ,'J-}ll..M-{- -{"' F~t..u- 1-fy 5~-k 
I 

In Order To Assure County wide Representation Please Indicate Your Township Of Residence: 

Q Bald Mountain O stony Fork ow~a 
0 New River Q Brushy Fork (9COve Creek 

Q Beaver Dam O Meat Camp Q Shawneehaw 

O elue Ridge 0 Biowlng Rock 0 Laurel Creek 

0 Eik Q North Fork O eoone 

In addition, Please Indicate If You Live In One Of The Following Areas: 

0 Foscoe-Grandfather Community 0 Valle Crucis Historic District 

0 Howards Creek Watershed 0 Winklers Creek Watershed 

Q South Fork New River Watershed 0 Extraterritorial Area 

We Ask Your Help In Assuring Diversity Of Membership By Age, Gender, And Race, By Answering The 
Following Questions 

Gender 

0 Male 

~ 

Ethnic Background 

0 Afrlcan American Q Hispanic 

~ 0 0ther 

0 Native American 

Please List (In Order Of Preference) The Boards/Commissions On Which You Would Be Willing To Serve. 

1.1 Wc.J~>LLj'- [o. &w-J / ~'-'v.Ji_""'_e._.---+_s~~~~~~~~ 
2.1 ~)'"\.e_ lZu..ro--/ r,'re- P·o-1-ed~o ..... 
3.1 LJb..-h.ujCL Lo. p /Mr-·~ TSow-d 

t/. foufiJrv- Vwe.(r_M~.f: )V~_-Ii,or~~ 
( f-CPfi.P)I'>l ,'L l)J)1Jrvte.,..-f bw.tl\~S to"' 



032117 BCC Meeting

126

Work 
Experience: 

Volunteer 
Experience: 

Other 
Experience: 

Other 
Comments: 

Volunteer Application 
Watauga County Boards And Commissions 

(Continued) 

Please list any work, volunteer, and/or other experience you would like to have considered in the review of your application. 

I 4+ -f:o Lo //.e.rjf- o .. i )J/)...
1 

vW>vJ V-Jt; tr ~ork- J. -/Le,._ de(tl)'(!j fo yv.mve lx..ck. 
fl.y lw.$LJ J- :r. ~ J,e.~ /,'v.l.-0 J e..?o<L~ ,'A_ t)().._.f-Mljo.- s,!...ce. -/Le,... [N ~ ywf). 
LJe-. f /W\. .fo J.-1-w.; Life .fLe d_;J 1- ow /,~tJ s.lce. ~ love. -!Le. ()./V- J.. 1'\d>t-J 

/\L.Je_ ,J)~J7 ,Lc_D,""e_ kofl" ovr re,.../-~ 1 f'or'-f.~s_ L wo,JJ /,'}.~ +. jt'vL t._c/:_ 
t. ·fL~1 tt.rf!P- by )U\J.~ o"' 0- !vto--1 eo,...,,.-}f-1«.1 -to /w"" J- +a L.~r · 

Signature:~ kK: Date: ///2t/)0 

Print Form I Reset form 



032117 BCC Meeting

127

Z000/ I000d 

l 00 'd 

-Ol 

Volunteer Application 
Watauga County Boaros And Commissions 

If ygu are a Watzuga County n:slclent. at least 1 B years pld, and willing tD wlunt£erycur tllne and 
8XJ*Ii88 to your community, pleas& complete tna appllc:atlcn balaw and dick on Prfnt Form. 
Plc:aH algn end mall or fee ID: 

W8teug& Qxmty~omo. 
8U 14IMr Klltg--. 6«* 206 

Boone. NC 281J()7 
Phone: (828) 255-8000 
F.ar(4Z9)~ 

Name: Louis B. Gallien, Jr 
Homo.Mdrocs: 250 Little Harbour Ct. 

City. Vilas 21p: 28692 

Telc:phcne; (HJ248-828-53Q7 (W) (Fa) -------------- -------------
~~ lbgallien@gmail.com 

Placl!l o1 EmpJ'¥1\ent Appalachian State 

JobntJe: Professor and former Dean 

tn order TO ~11!! cou~ ~e Reprael11liiJDn PleasatndiOIIt8YourTOWnsrllp.or Rasjelanca: 

0eaJo MOUniBtn Q5tony f"Ofk: Qvvatauge 

QNawRMr 0BnahyFcrk Oeo.aCNek 
Qs-- DeTn ·QM~Camp QShlliWnoehaw . 

0Btue Ridge QBI«MM~ Rat* Ql.aut1!11 Creek 

0Eik 0Nof1h Rlrk G) Boone 

In aG~HIOn. Plee&e ln~ieate IT You L~ In One or 1fle fOllOWing Atau: 
Q f'~Oomm"nitY C!)Ycd~ Oruc;is HW.IuriG Disbi..t 

0 WaWs"'a Creek 'Natllishecl 0 Wlnldere Cr8ek Wat.rVIed 

()South Forte: Naw Rivet WstafBtled 0 Eldlalat• itnfial Ar8a 

We Ask Your Help In Assuring OMniiy Of Memb:efship By Age, Gender; fWj Race, By Answering The 
l"oi!Qw1ng~ 

E1h1'i1D Baokground 
QAfrlc:an AmeriCan QHIBpllntc: 

{:)eaUCK~S~an Ootnar 
0Natm:J Amor'ifiCin 

PleaM List (ln Order Of Prwflnnoe) The ~mmla!ons On Which You Would Be Willing To Se!Yit. 

1.!Valle Crucis Historic Preservation Commission EJ 
2./Caldwell Community College Board Of Trustees 

s../Valle Crucis Community Council 
Gl -,.::. 

EJ: 

WV tl : ll 1Hrl/ 9l0l/ ZO/ J3G 



032117 BCC Meeting

128

Z000/Z000d 

Veal urn.. 
~ence: 

Ottler 
Commenl8: 

zoo 'd 

-Ol 

Volunteer Application 
Watauga County Boards And Commissions 

(Continutld) 

Fl'- ll!at •"Y wortc., wtuntar, and/Cir other upellence you would likE to have conaidered in the raviaw tJf your I!Jipilcatlcn, 

I have served on numerous historic commissions and one school board. 

Extensive wtih the Episcopal Church 

Signawre: Dli18: ------

WV tl :11 1Hd/ 910Z/ Z0/ )3Q 



032117 BCC Meeting

129

12/4/2016 7:45 AM FROM: 8286398233 

From: 

Fax: 

Phone: 

Robert Hoffman, MA, LPCA, Managing 
Partner 
PIEDMONT COUNSELING & 
DEVELOPMENT GROUP 

(828 )270-3840 

(828)270-3840 x707 

TO: +18282643230 

To: WATAUGA COUNTY COMISSIONS OFFICE 
Fax: 828.264.3230 

Phone: 

Pages: 

Re: VOLUNTEER APPLICATION PER LARRY TURNBOW 

CONFIDENTIAL 

Pursuant to Larry Turnbow's request, please find my attached application and 
summary of qualifications for the EDC . 

Thank you , 
Robert L. Hoffman 

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY: The information contained in this facsimile message is a 
client privileged and confidential information intended only for the use of the individual or entity 
named above. If the reader of this message IS NOT the intended recipient , you are hereby 
notified that any dissemination distribution, or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. 
If you have received this communication in error, please immediately notify us by telephone and 
return the original message to us at the above address via the US Postal Service. Thank you. 

RECEIVED 12-04-' 16 10 :46 FROM- 8286398233 TO -

P . 1 

P0001/ 0004 



032117 BCC Meeting

130

12/4/2016 7:45 AM FROM : 8286398233 TO: +18282643 230 

Volunteer Application 
Watauga County Boards And Commissions 

If you are a Watauga County resident, at least 18 years old, and willing to volunteer your time and 
expertise to your community, please complete the application below and click on Print Form. 
Plol'lao sign and meil or fex to: 

Watauga County Commlssloner.s' Of1iC1J 
814 West King Street, Suite 205 

Boone. NC 28607 
PhonG: (828) 26~8000 

Fax: (828) 264-3230 

Nama: 

Home Address: 

City: Zip: 

Telephone: (H) (W) (Fax) 

Email: 

Place of Employment: 

Job Title: 

In Order To Assure County wide Representation Please Indicate Your Township Of Residence: 

0Bald Mountain Ostony For1< Owllllluga 

QNew Rtver QBrushy Fork (:)Cove Creek 

C'JBeaver Dam QMeat Camp QShawneehaw 

QBiue Ridge QBIO'\Ning Rock QLaurel Creek 

Q Eik ()North Fork Qeoone 

1.1 
2. 

3. 

In addition, Please Indicate If You LIVe In One Of The Fotlowtng Areas: 

0 Foscoe-Grandfather Community Q Valle Crucis Historic District 

0 Howards Creek Watershed Q Winklers Creak Watershed 

QSouth Fork New River Watershed 0 Extraterritorial Area 

we Ask Your Help In Assuring Diversity Of Membership By Age, Gender, And Race, By Answering The 
Following Questions 

Gender 

QMele 

0 Female 

Ethnic Background 

QAfrican American 0 Hispanic 

Q Caucasian 0 Other 

0Native American 

Please List (In Order Of Preference) The Boards/Commissions On Which You would Be Willi~ To Serve. 

RECEIVED 12-04 -' 16 10 :46 FROM- 8286398233 TO -

P . 2 

P0002/0004 



032117 BCC Meeting

131

12/4 / 2016 7:45AM FROM : 8286398233 TO: +18282643230 

Volunteer Application 
Watauga County Boards And Commissions 

(Continued) 

P . 3 

Please lim any work, volunteer, and/or other experience you would like U:l have considered in the review of your application. 

Work 
Experience: 

Volunteer 
Exp811ence: 

Other 
Experience: 

Other 
Comments: 

Signature: 
----------------------------------

Print Fonn I 

RECEIVED 12-04- ' 16 10 :46 FROM - 8286398233 

Date: 

Reset Form 

TO- P0003/0004 



032117 BCC Meeting

132

12/4/2016 7:45AM FROM: 8286398233 TO: +18282643230 P. 4 

Robert Lowell Hoffman, M.A., LPCA 
(917) 696 - 7902 rhoffman@piedmontcdg .com 

Experience Piedmont Counseling and Development Group 2014- present 

Education 

Service 

Managing Partner and LPCA 
• Responsible for the launch and management oversight of newve1tically integrated , regional behavioral 

health practice - all day to day operations, marketing, personnel and internship pipeline in partnership with 
local univers ities 

• Lead design and implementation of Integrated Care with leading ACO system Cornerstone Healthcare (a 
Wake Forest subsidiary) 
Lead oversight of direct to business (non-national) EAP contracts and behavioral health components for 
on-site employee health clinics with private and public entit ies for more then 3,000 employees 

" Pa id Lectu rer locally to area businesses, government agencies and educational institutions 
• Paid Consultant advising and leading change around organizational development 
• Successfully procured , implemented and presently manage meaningful use certified EMR and Practice 

Management system 
• Provide counse ling seNices to chi ldreniadolescents, adu lts , and marita l/couple units 

Lenoir Rhyne University 2015 - present 
Adjunct Professor 

Currently instructing undergraduate students in the psychology department 
• Designed and teaching course entitled "Race , Gender and Sexual Identity Across the American Religious 

Landscape" chosen for full year 2016/2017 offering 
• Employ "flipped class" teaching paradigm 
• Class cumulative GPA consistently greater then 3.5 

Brookhaven Apparel Group 
Owner, New York, NY 2011 -2013 

Strategica lly led new business development for proprietary licensed brands Jack & Jinger, Beverly Hills 
Polo Club, Jackie Rogers and procurement efforts for new licenses Vera Wang, Nicole Miller, and Joseph 
Abboud 

• Liaised between manufacturers, licensors, licensees, design and sales to create and execute business plan 
marketing and pro -formas , P&L projections, and line assortments for brand launches 

The Jones Group 2007- 2011 
Business Unit Manager, New York, NY 
• Fortune 500 Manager overseeing $200mm wholesale and retail portfolio 
• Successfully led organizational change for department, consolidating 5 locations and streamlining 

personnel 
• Designed, implemented, and managed departmental quantitative tools and sales/merchandising systems, 

streamlin ing operations, increasing efficiency and accuracy of sa les reporting and sell -through performance 
for $1 B Division 

• Elected to "RISE" by CEO Wes Card and JAG Excellence Committee- leadership program 

SELINA 2002-2006 
Partner/Founder, New York, NY 

• Founder of successful ladies sportswear firm sold nationwide in Nordstrom 

• Led strategic tu rn around of ailing wholesale business prior to launch of new label ; organized and 
streamlined operations, sales reporting , and merchandising initiatives 

Montreat College 
LPC Candidate, M.A. Mental Health Counseling, 2014 
Chi Sigma Iota Honors Member (3. 8 GPA), Commencement Speaker 
Moravian College 
B.A. English, 2000, Alpha Sigma Lambda Honors Member 

Faith in America 
Co- Chair 

201 5 - present 

Exodus Homes 2015- present 
Presently lead coordination of free counseling seNices for lead ing area residential facility 
F.E.G.S. --Suited for Work 2007-2011 
Voluntary Advisory Committee Member (Chair, 2008- 09), New York, NY 
Led voluntary committee responsible for clothing thousands of displaced workers in NYC region 

RECEIVED 12-04-'16 10:46 FROM- 8286398233 TO- P0004/0004 



032117 BCC Meeting

133

Z: 000 / "C000d -Ol 

._.... ~ CDallrlolaD .... (Jill» 

814 ..... KIItfl ~ 8c.llt 205 
S.X... NC 286t11 

Ptrt1n« (82B) 2&WOOO 
FII1C (128) 2CW...1230 

Name; Jessica Lorello 
HomeMdleal: 292 Fieldstream Drive 
euy. Boone z.: 28607 
TelllpNnt; tH>91 03748468 (W) (Fu) ------------ ------------
Emlit jessica.lorello@gmail.com 
PleeeotEtnpioynlent Appalachian State University 
Job Tile: Director, University Tutorial Services 

In OMrTo A1111.n ~ wldll ~ltllliOri Ptee111 hiiBII YwrTCMIIIINp OtRBIIdence: 

QBelo Moumeln QStany Fark (!)W11111Ug8 

QNIM River QBIUihy Fen ()Cow Crvek 

QBeavwDam QMeatCamp QShewneenaw 

Qe1ue Ridge QB~ RDak QwNI C'.IMk 

QEJIC ()crth Folk QBocne 

In addition, Pleaae II'KiklldB It You Llwl ln OnD Of The Fallowing Areu; 

0 ~ Canmunlly Q Valla CFucls Hllll:lrlo Dlllrlot 

Q Howald• C!Wk W811nhlld Q Wlnk11111l Creek Watanlhed 

QSOU!II Fetk New River WIIIDI'Ihad 0 Exllelanibial Ar8li 

Elri:; BIGiciJound 
QNrtcan Anatclirl 0 Hiepenic 

QC.«:aa''l QOIIw 
0Ndwe ArOOI10in 

Pleaae Ull ~n OldDr Of Pl'l*nnao) The~ CM Vtlhlllrl You WaUd Bu Wlli'G To Solve. 

1.1 Economic Development Commission 

z. ['wat~uga County Planning Board 
,...--------·-· . -· 

3. 



032117 BCC Meeting

134

Z000 /2:000d -Ol - WOH~ z0:9t 9t ,-S0-Zt G3AI3J3H 

Volunteer Application 
Watauga County BoarCs And Commission& 

(Continued) 

Director, University Tutorial Services at Appalachian State - current 
Catering Manager, Reid's Catering - current 
Wedding Coordinator, Events by Elizabeth Ashley- current 
Assistant Director, International Student and Scholar Services at Appalachian State 
University - August 2012-January 2014 

FestivaJ of Trees Planning Committee in support of WYN 
Previous Community Care Clinic Volunteer 

I have lived in Boone for 6 years, as a graduate student, and now as an active 
community member. l am invested in this town, and this county to make sure it is the 

Oth8r best for those who reside here. Boone has become home for me and I would like to 
Commura: take an active part in the place that I call home. 

Slg..-lln: ---------------------------



032117 BCC Meeting

135

Dec 06 16 09 56a Reids Cafe & Catering 
8288989200 

Wabi t,Jga County Boards And Commissions 

If you are a Watauga Count] I'U$ldtmt, at lea&t 18 yeMi old, and wtlllng to volunteer your time and 
8Jq)8ftlse to your community please completa the a~Jic:Qtion below and click on Print Form. 
Please sign and mall or fax 1 : 

Wateuga County Commlssionr~ra' omcv 
Bf4 West King Stioot, SUite 205 

Boone. NC 28007 
Ph4M: (828) 26IHJOCO 

Fux: (8Z8} Z54-J230 

Name· Tina Houston 

HomeAcklruss: 920 Odes Wi lson Road 

Zionville 28698 Cltr. Zip: 

--------------------
TeiBflhO!Ie: (H) 8282976955 (W)8282689600 (Fax) 8288989200 

emau: tinahouston71 @gtnail.com 

Place of Employment: Reic s Cafe & Catering Co. 

Job lltJG: Owner/Operato 

In Order fo ~ru County ~e Representation Please lridlcate Your Township Of Residence: 

QBald Mountain Ostony Fcrt< @Watauga 

QNew River QBruahy Fork QCove Creek 

QBeaver Dam O Meat Csmp Qshawneehaw 
Oalue Ridge QBJowlng RoCk QLautal Creek 

QEik QNorth Fork QBoone 

In addition, Plea se lndlcam If You Live In One Of The Following Areas: 

0 Fosc:oe-Grandfather C "'"munlty QV&lie Crucis Historic Dlatrlct 

0 Howarda Craek Wllf.e ~had QWinlders Creek Watershed 

()South Fork Naw River ~atenlhad ® Extnlterrltorial Area 

We Aek Your Help In Assur11 p DIVerSity Of Membership By Age. Gender, And Race, By An~ring The 
Foflowlng Questions 

Gender 

QMale 

@Female 

Ethnic Background 
QAfrlcan American 0 Hiapanic 

@Caucasian 0 Other 

QN«<Iva American 

Please List (In Order Of Preferen le) The Bclarda/Commi8Sions On Which You Would Ba Wlllng To Serve. 

1.1Watauga County Touri m Development Authority 
r-.. -- -- - -· .. ---- -- ... - ---- - ... - ......... --- -

2.: Recreation Commissio ["! 
r----------- ·- --

3.1Juvenile Crime Preven ion Counci l (Jcpc)Juvenile Crime Prevention Cou 
I 

__ _.RECEIVED 12-06-' 16 09 :01 FR . ..::::O~M -__,..8=-=2=-=-8.:....:89:_:.8.:....:92:._0_0 ____ TO_-_ 

p.1 

P0001 / 0002 



032117 BCC Meeting

136

Dec 0616 09 56a Reids Cafe & Catering 8288989200 

.. 
uga County Boards And COmmissions 

(Continued) 

p.2 

experience you would llk.e to hiiYe considered In 1he review of )'CUr appllcatfon. 

ave een se -emp oye or t e prev1ous en y years m tne osp1ta 1 tn ustry. y : 
company: employees 9 f 1-time year round staff and 28 part-time seasonal staff and 
offers internship program to culinary students from the southeast. My career/ 
company bridges the priv te sector, works with many local non-profits, local agencies 
and with/within Appalachi n State University. 

Wo!K I firmly believe a happy, U supported community and local government offers the 
Experience: opportunity for positive gr wth in : education; safe neighborhoods; the arts, available 

recreatron, local food syst ms, strong economic viability and as a steward mountains 
that we call home. 

een spen suppo tng e o owtng non-pro 1 sevens: 
+Mountain Alliance, 13 ye rs!Board Member/Board Chair 
+Watauga Youth Network, 3.5 years/Board Member 
+Two River Community S hool, 4 years/Board Member 
+Mountain Pathways Mon essori School, 4.5 years/Board Member 

Volunteer +Habitat for Humanity, ev nts 
Experience: +Children's Council, even 

Other 
Expertence: 

+High Country Recreation ummit, events 

in whatever capacity is most helpful. 

Other 
Comments: 

s~~w~:--------------~r-------------

RECEIVED 12-06 ' 16 09: 01 FROM- 8288989200 

Cate: 

TO - P0002/0002 



032117 BCC Meeting

137

Z000/T000d -Ol SS88S968Z8 -WOH~ sz :zi 9I,-SI-ZI O~AI~~~H 
Volunteer Application 

Watauga County Boards And Commissions 

If you aru a Watauga em..tty resident, at least 18 yaars cld, and Willing ·to volunteer yt~ur time and 
axpert:iae 10 your community. please complata the application below and dick on Print Form. 
Please $ign and mall or fell to: 

Wet&l.lfl8 County Commis.slansm' Offlce 
814 WNt King Street, Suite 205 

Botme, NC 28607 
Phone: (828} 265-8000 

Fax: (828) 264-3230 

Name: PATRICIA PARISH 

HomeAddress: 1957 PEORIA ROAD 

oty: SUGAR GROVE Zlp: 28679 

Telephone: {t-l) 297-5388 (W) 963-8833 (Fax) 963-8833 

Email: PPARISH@SKYBEST.COM 

Pleceorempleyment STONEY CREEK REALTY 

Joblllle: BROKER/OWNER 

In Order To Assure County wide Feepresentatlon Please Indicate Your Tawnehip Of ReSdence: 

QBald Mountain QStvny Folk Qwatauga 

QNew River QDruohy For1t Qeove Creek 

0Beaver Dam Q Meld Camp QShawneehaw 

Os1ue Ridge QBiowlng Rock Qlauret Creek 

QEik QNorth Fori< 0Boone 

In addition, Please Indicate If You Live In One Of The FollcM;ng Areas: 

0 Foscoe-Grandf&ther Community 0 Valle CruCis H lstorlc District 

0 HowiGs Creek Watenihed 0 Wlnklers Creek Waterst.ed 

()south For1< Naw River Watsrahed 0 Ex1ratarrit.orial Area 

We Ask Your Help In Assur1ng DiverSity Of Membership By Age, Gender, And Race, Ely Answel1ng The 
Following Questions 

Gender 

0Mal9 

0Female 

E:1hnic Background 

OA!rican American QHispanic 

0caucas1an Qother 
Q Native American 

Please List (In O!ller Of Preference) The Boards/Commi~lons On Which You Would Be Willing To Serve. 

1.! Watauga County Tourism Development Authority 
~ --·-· ·· -·--·-· - ·····--·· 

2.! 
,------- · 

3.j 

,.\ll\f3t:J >l33t:J:J ,.\3N01S 



032117 BCC Meeting

138

Z000/Z000d 

Work 
Experience: 

Volunteer 
Experience: 

other 
Experience: 

Other 
Comments: 

-Ol SS88S968Z8 -WOH~ sz:z t 9t ,-St -Zt G3AI3J3H 
Volunteer Application 

Watauga County Boards And Commissions 
(Continued) 

Please Jist any work, voluntaer,.andlor other experience you woold like to have considered in. the review of your appll~llon . 

OWNER- STONEY CREEK ANTIQUES- 1979-PRESENT 

BROKER@ CENTURY 21-ELLIOT PROPERTIES-1996-2006 

BROKERIOWNER-S,TONEY CREEK REALTY- 2006-PRESENT 

VALLE CRUCIS SCHOOL CLASSROOM VOLUNTEER -1984-1987 

BLOWING ROCK SCHOOL CLASSROOM VOLUNTEER-1988-1994 

MEALS ON WHEELS VOLUNTEER- 2000-2002 

WATAUGA/AVERY BOARD OF REAL TORS-COMMUNITY ACTION COMMITTEE-
1998-2008 

MY HUSBAND AND I OWN HIGHWAY ROBBERY IN DOWNTOWN BOONE AND 
HAVE BEEN IN BUSINESS THERE SINCE THE FALL OF 1971. 

Date: I(;} - I 3 - l (.p 

I -~ il~~~t:~~~n.~· ·· .j • ' '. ' ' ' ·• I·., ·. 

A.ll\f:J'cl >133CJ8 A.3N01S 



032117 BCC Meeting

139

Volunteer Application 
Watauga County Boards And Commissions 

If you are a Watauga County resident, at least 18 years old, and willing to volunteer your time and / 
expertise to your community, please complete the application below and dick on Print Form. _,.. 
Please sign and mail or fax to: .;/ 

Watauga County Commissioners' Office 
814 West King Street, Suite 205 

Boone, NC 28607 
Phone: (828) 265-fJOOO 
Fax: (828) 264-3230 

Name: Lisa Cooper 

HomeAddress: 223 Sycamore Trail 

City: Banner Elk, NC zip: 28604 
---------------------

Telephone: (H)828-963-6072 (W)828-963-6511 (Fax) 828-963-7005 

Email: lisa@ mastgeneralstore.com 

PJaceotEmployment Mast General Store 

Job Title: President 

In Order To Assure County wide Representation Please Indicate Your Township Of Residence: 

QBald Mountain Ostony Fork Q watauga 

0 New River QBrushy Fork QCove Creek 

()Beaver Dam Q Meat Camp @Shawneehaw 

QBiue Ridge QBiowing Rock 0 Laurel Creek 

0Eik ()North Fork QBoone 

In addition, Please Indicate If You Live In One Of The Following Areas: 

0 Foscoe-Grandfather Community 0 Valle Cruds Historic District 

0 Howards Creek Watershed 0 Winklers Creek Watershed 

()South Fork New River Watershed 0 Extraterritorial Area 

We Ask Your Help In Assuring Diversity Of Membership By Age, Gender, And Race, By Answering The 
Following Questions 

Gender 

0Male 

€)Female 

Ethnic Background 

0Afrlcan American 0 Hispanic 

0Caucaslan 0othar 

Q Native American 

Please List (In Order Of Preference) The Boards/Commissions On Which You Would Be Willing To Serve. 

1.1Watauga County Tourism Development Authority G 

3. 

) 



032117 BCC Meeting

140

Work 
Experience: 

Vofuntser 
Experience: 

Volunteer Application 
Watauga County Boards And Commissions 

(Continued) 

Please list any work, volunteer, and/or other experience you would like to have considered In the review of your application. 

ram currently serving as the President of Mast General Store. I am currently serving 
on the Wells fargo local board, 

Volunteer board experience. 

Watauga County TDA board 7 years 

Watauga Community Foundation 3 years 

NCSSM Board of Trustees current 

Holy Cross Church vestry 3 years 

My commitment to the community has always been strong. I have three children and 
raising them has been one of my biggest life experiences. This has helped guide me 
o be involved in the community and give back where possible. 

I have always looked back with pride at the commitment we had as we developed the 
other Watauga TDA from the start. I would be proud to be back on the board 
Experience: 

other 
Comments: 

Signature: 
-------------------------------

Print Form I 

Date: 

Reset Form 



032117 BCC Meeting

141

Volunteer Application 
Watauga County Boards And Commissions 

If you are a Watauga County resident, at least 18 years old, and willing to volunteer your time and - ~:1 
expertise to your community, please complete the application below and dick on Print Forro. . r ~ · ·.; ~ ·-;·~\ • 

Please sign and mail or fax to: . - ' '(-~ . . • ' u-.) \ 
• f , n ...... J.? u \-' _ __, i • • 

f\',\.r~.;;l~~-- \\ \I 
Watauga County Commissioners' Offica . \ \ \ I \ \ 

814 West King Street, Suite 205 ' .. i 1 
1 

l-. 'i0\6 \ \ 1 
\ 

Boone, NC 28607 ~\\ \ D t_C 1 J \ ) 1 
Phone: (828) 265-8000 ' i \ I • '"" 'I 

Fax: (828) 264-3230 _...---- , 

I L:- -~-------- -~J 
Nama: Matthew Lucas 

HomeAddress: 1220-2 Aho Rd 

aty: Blowing Rock Zip: 28605 

---------------------
Telephone: (H)828- 263-7614 (W)828-355-5526 (Fax) 

--------
Email: mlucas@overmountainstudios.com 

Place of Employment: Overmountain Studios 

Job Title: Director of Marketing 

In Order To Assure County wide Representation Please Indicate Your Township Of Residence: 

QBald Mountain Ostony FolK Owatauga 

QNew River QBrushy Fork QCove Creek 

QBeaver Dam QMeat Camp QShawneehaw 

0Biue Ridge 0Biowing Rock QLaurel Creek 

QEik QNorth Fork Oeoone 

In addition, Please Indicate If You Live In One Of The Following Areas: 

0 Foscoe-Grandfather Community 0 Valle Cruds Historic District 

0 Howards Creek Watershed 0 Winklers Creek Watershed 

0South Fork New River Watershed 0 Extraterritorial Area 

We Ask Your Help In Assuring Diversity Of Membership By Age, Gender, And Race, By Answering The 
Following Questions 

Gender 

0Male 

0Female 

Ethnic Background 

QAfrlcan American 0 Hispanic 

0Caucaslan QOther 

QNative American 

Please List (In Order Of Preference) The Boards/Commissions On Which You Would Be Willing To Serve. 

1.!Social Services Board 

2. Watauga County Tourism Development Authority 

El 
El 

····························· a 



032117 BCC Meeting

142

Work 
Experience: 

Volunteer 
Experience: 

Other 
Experience: 

Other 
Comments: 

Volunteer Application 
Watauga County Boards And Commissions 

(Continued) 

Please list any work, volunteer, and/or other experience you would like to have considered in the review of your application. 

I am currently the Director of Marketing at Overmountain Studios, Inc, a locally owned 
and operated corporation. Previously, I worked in the Reservations Office at 
Appalachian Ski Mountain. 

I am the social media coordinator for Quiet Givers, a local non-profit that works with 
other area charities and organizations to help fill gaps in community needs. We are a 
collaborative organization that crowd-sources needs by working with other groups, 
charities, and anonymous donors to get needs filled in a timely manner. As social 
media coordinator, I am the gatekeeper between our partner organizations and the 
public, corresponding with other organization to find the best solution for the needs, 
then passing them along to the public to fill through Facebook, email newsletters, and 
our website. We also serve meals at the Cove Creek Community Center every 5th 
Thursday through the Western Watauga Food Outreach. In add ition, I have 
volunteered at the Back 2 School Festival, for which I also organized fundraisers with 
local businesses through Quiet Givers. 

I was a Tweetsie cowboy for nine years, during which t ime I met and formed 
relationships with many members of the community. My theatrical background has 
given me strong social and networking skills, and a wide variety of acquaintences. I 
have also worked as a professional film critic since 2004, and my work has been 
published in the Lexington Dispatch for 12 years now. I minored in English in college 
at ASU, which has helped me develop strong writing and communication ski lls. I have 
also done education internships/field experience at Blowing Rock Elementary and 
Reeds Elementary School in Lexington, NC. 

Although there are only three spots listed, I would be willing to serve on any board for 
which the Commission feels I am qualified . 

Date: 

Print Form I Reset Form 



032117 BCC Meeting

143

Volunteer Application 
Watauga County Boards And Commissions 

If you are a Watauga County resident, at least 18 years old, and willing to volunteer yo~r time and 
expertise to your community, please complete the application below and dick on Print Fonn. 
Please sign and mall or fax to: r \ r 

/ \ 

,_ 
f ... 

'-{l 

Watauga County Commissioners' Office 
814 West King Street, Suite 205 

Boone, NC 28607 
I 'i 

l 
DEC 2 ., 2016 

Phone: (828) 26~000 
Fax: (828) 264-3230 

Name: Robert W. Holton 

HomeAddress: 478' Forestridge Drive 

City: Boone 

L 

Zip: 28607 

Telephone: (H) (W)8282643644 (Fax) 8282643725 

Email: holton400@gmail.com 

PlaceofEmployment: Holton Mountain Rentals 

Job Title: Owner 

In Order To Assure County wide Representation Please Indicate Your Township Of Residence: 

QBaid Mountain Ostony Fork owateuga 

0New River OBrushy Fork Q Cove Creek 

QBeaver Dam OM eat Camp QShawneehaw 

(!)Blue Ridge 0Biowing Rock 0Laurel Creek 

0Eik 0North Fork 0Boone 

In addition, Please Indicate If You Live In One Of The Following Areas: 

0 Foscoe-Grandfather Community 0 Valle Crucis Historic District 

0 Howards Creek Watershed 0 Wlnklers Creek Watershed 

QSouth Fork New River Watershed ~ Extraterritorial Area 

~ !'f.,., II~ No .f-
We Ask Your Help In Assuring Diversity Of Membership By Age, Gender, And Race, By Answering The 
Following Questlons 

Gender 

(!)Male 

0Female 

Ethnic Background 

0African American 0 Hispanic 

(!)Caucasian 00ther 

0 Native American 

Please List (In Order Of Preference) The Boards/Commissions On Which You Would Be Willing To Serve. 

1. jwatauga County Tourism Development Authority 

2.: 

i 
---~-J~ 

I 
) i 

I 
J 



032117 BCC Meeting

144

Work 
Experience: 

Volunteer 
Experience: 

Other 
Experience: 

Other 
Comments: 

Volunteer Application 
Watauga County Boards And Commissions 

(Continued) 

Please list any work, volunteer, and/or other experience you would like to have considered In the review of your application. 

Owned and operated Holton Mountain Rentals since 1980. 

Have preciously served on the Watauga County Economic Development Commission 
and on the Watauga County Tourism Development Authority. 

While on Watauga County TDA helped develop the Watauga County Outdoor 
Recreation Plan and Rocky Knob Park .. 

I feel that the Watauga County TDA is important to help us grow our tourism industry 
while at the same time improving the quality of life for Watauga County citizens. 
Rocky Knob Park is an example of a capital project that serves a dual purpose by 
improving recreation opportunities for both locals and tourists. In addition I feel that 
the better the quality of life is in Watauga County the more Watauga County will be 
attractive to businesses wanting to locate here. 

Date: 

Reset Form 



032117 BCC Meeting

145

Volunteer Application 
Watauga County Boards And Commissions 

If you are a Watauga County resident, at least 18 yea"' old, and willing to volunteer your time and 
expertise to your community, pleaae complete the application below and dick on Print Form. 
Please sign and mall or lex to: 

Watauga County Commlsslono~· Offlce 
814 West King Street, Suite 205 

Boons, NC 28807 
Phone: (828) 265-8000 
Fax: (828) 264-3230 

Name: Matt Vincent 

HomeAddreas: 886 Hunting Hills Lane 

City: Boone Zip: 28607 

Telephone: (H) (W)8282950707 (Fax)8288323882 
-------

Email: mvincent.vpc@gmail.com 

PlaceoiEmploymont: VPC Builders and Vincent Properties 

Job Title: Contractor and Realtor 

In Order To Assure County wide Representation Ploaoolndlcata Your Township Of Rooldonoo: 

0Bald Mountain Ostony Fork Owatauga 

0Now River OBrushy Fork ()Cove Creek 

0Beaver Dam OMeat Camp 0Shownoehaw 

0Biue Ridge 0Biowlng Rock OLaurel Creek 

0Eik QNorth Fork 0Boono 

In addition, Please lndlcata lfYou Live In One Of The Following Areas: 

0 Fosooe-Grandtather Community 0 Valle Cruds Historic Dlotrfct 

0 Howards Creek Wa~hod 0 Wlnklers Creek Watershed 

Qsouth Fork Now River Watershed 0 Extraterritorial Area 

We Ask Your Help In Assuring Diversity Of Membership By Age, Gender, And Race, By Answering The 
Following Queatlons 

Gender 

0Male 

0Fomale 

Ethnic Background 
0African American 0 Hispanic 

0Csucaslan 0othor 

0Native American 

Please List (In Order Of Preference) The Boards/Commissions On Wlhlch You Would Be Willing To Serve. 

t.lwatauga County Tourism Development Authority l3 
2.iEconomic Development Commission 

3.!w~~~~g~C~~~tyPianning Board 

·---··---··--· ·-------·- ·-·-·-· ·-13 

B 



032117 BCC Meeting

146

Wori< 
Expe~ance: 

Volunteer 
Expe~ence: 

other 
Experience: 

other 
Comments: 

Volunteer Application 
Watauga County Boards And Commissions 

(Continued) 

Please list any work, volunteer, and/or other experience you would like to have considered In the review of your application. 

General Contractor 
Realtor 

Past President of High Country Home Builders 
Chair of Watauga County TDA 
Board member on Purple Heart Homes 
Town of Boone Planning Board 

I was born and raised in the Boone and have lived here my entire life. 

Would love the opportunity to serve on the Watauga County TDA again. 

Signature: -------1-'&"\,"""-Jt--=U:....>...<J'-t------- Date: _ _,1 J'---<.{-+{--'-IJ--'--

Print Form I Reset Form 



032117 BCC Meeting

147

Volll'lteer Application 
-: ,-----::1. 

,-: ~ ,.\ '. ·~ 
Watauga County Boards And Commissions 

. . _----. I \ ·. 
If YQU are a Wetauga County I'U&ldent, alleaat 18 yean~ old, and willing to volunteer your time 1111d . __ . : · , ' \:,--:?., \. \ · 
expertise to your community, please complete the application below and click on Pfi!lt F.orm. -:- _, (r::Q ·,~--~~y__;::---- \\ \ ' 
Please sign and man or fax to: · - ' , r~ '-.:::::-"--------------- ·.. . '·\ \ '\\p-··-

Name: 

Watsugs County Commissioners' Offlce 
814 ~~King Street, Suite 205 

Boon~t, NC 28607 
Phone: {828) 265-8000 
Fax: (828) 264-3230 

}1\.o., l(a_v~ 

'. \ ~ \ I ~ \..\ ') c. L\Jil \\J! \ 
: \ \.) 1"\ \'\ {... IJ f___--./ \ 

' I I\\ \ ..------------ . _j 
I> \ -'~--------- - ----, • ~.">- _;·>--~ 

Home Address: ])o( ~~d. &1 't4 
City: "B o v IJe. Zip: 2~ (por 
Telephone: (H) 6 ze . 77 3 ·I e 55 (W) ~ Z.'G. 2 C,2 ·1 Sf f. (Fax) 

- ------
Email: p 0 r I 0 c C' vt 4 ueJ 0 ~ ,5M~: I . (011\.1 

Place of Employment: ;fS'U 
Job Tille: 

In Order To Assure County wide Representation Please Indicate Your Township Of Residence: 

QBald Moun1aln ' ()stony Fori( Qwawuga 

QNaw River QBrushy Fork ()Cove Creek 

QBeaver Dam ~eat Camp ()Shawneehaw 

QBiue Ridge QBiowlng Rock QLaural Creek 

QE!k {)North Fork QBoone 

In addition, Please Indicate If You Live In One Of The Following Areas: 

0 Foacoe-Grandfather Community 0 Valle Crucis Historic District 

~Howards Creek Waten~hed 0 Wlnklers Creek Watershed 

j!p'south Fork New River Watershed 0 Exlrek!rritorial Area 

We Ask Your Help In Assuring Diversity Of Membership By Age, Gender, And Race, By Answering The 
Following Questions 

Gender 
QMale 

~emale 

Ethnic Background 
QAfrlcan Ametlcan QHiapanic 

~aucaslan Qother 

()Native American 

Please List (In Order Of Preference) The Boards/Commissions On Which You Would Be WIINng To Serve. 

1·1 l2.e tY(~fi.on { OYr)m(c;S' /1JY7 
2f /oCA.vtsM Dcv~ 1 op IYl~:--:;-----;r;;tho:,~fo=,__-- __ _ 
3.1 



032117 BCC Meeting

148

Volunteer Application 
Watauga County Board and Commissions 

(Continued) 

Please list any work, volunteer, and/or other experience you would like to have considered in the review of your application. 

Work 
Experience: 

Volunteer 
Experience: 

Other 
Experience: 

Other 
Comments: 

2005-present 0Wn.Elr.2.n.<i_GL!l~_E! River and Earth Adventures, Inc 

2005-present Coordinator of Earth Science, SecondarY. Education Pt:Qgram ASU 

2003-present Senior Lecturer Department of Geology Appalachian State University 

.Sno\\l~oar..Q.J_f!§JrugQ.[, Hawksnast Ski Resort 2003-2005 

2001-2003 

2001-2003 

2002 

2001-2005 

2000-2001 

MQ!mrnLil..Ar.n~J!§~dor Killington Resort, Vt 

YJ.§ll[IJg_.E.mf~-~..§91QLG~..QIQgY.J~Jl-Q_ G.h~mist.ry_ Castleton State College 

Yl~l1LIJ.9.Prqfes.!_Q!:.Qf_GeQlQQY. University of Vermont Continuing Ed. 

.S.Ym!!LElLE.!!.Q!Jl\Y. Governor's Institute of Science and Tec~nology 

Pretzels for kids at High Country Beer Fest 2011-present 
Volunteer, The Childrens' Playhouse ongoing 
Board of Directors, Two Rivers Community School 2015-present 

I 

Advisory Board, Discovery Place Education Studio at the Bank of America STEM Center for Career 
Development 
Mentor and Pen Pal, Letters to a Pre-Scientist, 201 0-present 
Curriculum Advisor, Two Rivers Community School, 2005 
Volunteer Scientist, Sclence-By4 Mall, Boston Museum of Science, 1996-2000 
National Earth Science Week, Geologist in the Park, Vermont 1999-2000 
Trained volunteers for Lake Champlain Basin Science Center, Vermont 

Family involvement In Watauga County Parks and Recreation 2013- present 
Small Business owner In Outdoor Recreation Industry- River and Earth Adventures, Inc. 
13 years working at ASU . I have strong cannectlons around campus. 

I care passionately about getting kids outside and moving. Our public schools are decreasing the 
number of days that students get outside. We need to make more programs or broaden the reach of 
existing programs to reach more kids. 

I am an organized and hard-working participant when given a task. I look forward to helping Watauga 
County and its people. 



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
E. Announcements 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The Boone Area Outdoor Recreation Summit will be held, Thursday, April 6, 2017, at Harvest 
House located at 247 Boone Heights Drive.  A Social will be held from 5:00 P.M. – 6:00 P.M. 
and the Program will be held from 6:00 P.M. – 8:30 P.M. 
 
A State of the Child Forum with the themes of Childhood Trauma and Trauma Informed 
Communities is scheduled for Friday May 5, 2017, from 8:00 A.M. until 4:30 P.M. at Boone 
United Methodist Church.  The opening Keynote Speaker will be Dr. George "Tripp" Ake, a 
licensed psychologist who specializes in trauma and trauma treatment.  Please see the attached 
email for more information. 
 
 
 
  

032117 BCC Meeting

149



craft
b e e r
series

PRECISI         N
INCP R I N T I N G

COMMUNICATION SOLUTIONS
& Precision Signs

032117 BCC Meeting

150

Let's gather at the ... 

BOONE flRffl 
OUTDOO~ 
RfCRf~TION 

APRIL 6, 2017 
HARVEST HOUSE, BOONE 

Boone fieights Shopping Center 1247 Boone fieights Dr. 

f~EE\ SOCIAL: 5-6pm 
~ Farm-to-Flame Taco Bar, Recreation Vendors, & Local Non-profits 

~ Sample the new Northern Peaks Trail Craft Beer Series from 
Appalachian Mountain Brewery) Boondocks) BooneshineJ & Lost Province. 

PROGRAM: 6-8:30pm 
~ Learn about the Northern Peaks Trail to connect the downtowns of Boone & 

West Jefferson. 

~ Get updates on the Middle Fork Greenway, Rocky Knob Park, Pisgah 
Mountain Biking and the state of regional tourism. 

--------------- SPONSORS! --------------
;f-~~o~ B:e;/0 

V5 ,; ~ " ,"•0 

® 

ooone 
north carolina ESPRESSO BAR & HOMEMADE DOUGHNUTS 

Recreation Management 
~T<(§:) 
6£N£R~ Beaver Colle~e of Health Sciences 
~ S'Tfli.R!.Jj;i' .~ -p Jl VJ!.~ - APPALACHIAN STATE UNIVERSITY 

COLLEGE OF H EALT H SCIENCES 

APPALACHIAN STATE UNIVERSITY 

(\) 
DESTINATION BY DESIGN 

HIGH COUNTRY 

PATHWAYS ·NEG K~ftt 

~~ 
LOCIL ~LAWIR TIIIIL·· ··· "' """ '""""' 

planning I design I promotion 

FOR EVENT INFORMATION, TEXT/CALL ERIC WOOLRIDGE: 828.719.1109 



1

Anita.Fogle

Subject: FW: State of the Child event in May

From: Christelle Marsh [mailto:marshck@appstate.edu]  
Sent: Monday, January 30, 2017 10:44 AM 
To: Deron.Geouque 
Subject: State of the Child event in May 
 
Dear Watauga County Commissioners, 
 
I would like to make the Watauga County Commissioners aware of an incredible event I am part of organizing in our 
community. The State of the Child Forum with the themes of Childhood Trauma and Trauma Informed Communities is 
scheduled for Friday May 5, 2017 from 8:00-4:30 pm at Boone United Methodist Church. We all experience stress, but at what 
point does stress become toxic stress, impacting brain development in children?  
 
The opening Keynote Speaker will be Dr. George "Tripp" Ake, a licensed psychologist who specializes in trauma and trauma 
treatment. The rest of the morning will feature speakers from local agencies who will provide details about trauma in our 
community and existing programs that address trauma prevention, intervention and treatment.  Lunch will be provided. The 
afternoon will include mixed-group brainstorming sessions with trained facilitators.  Closing our afternoon will be Tonier Cain, a 
globally known speaker with a focus on Trauma Informed Care.  
 
This community impact event seeks to bring together all sectors of our community including the medical community, 
the behavioral health system, law enforcement, media, politicians, juvenile justice, the school system, the Department 
of Social Services, Appalachian State University, the faith community, and other key stakeholders. Pre-registration is 
requested and will be available in March. We would love for one of our county commissioners to make plans to join us to learn 
more about how trauma impacts our children. I am happy to attend one of your meetings open for public comment to share this 
information. I am also available via email to answer any questions.  
 
Thank you for your time! 
Christelle K. Marsh 
marshck@appstate.edu 
Lead Toddler Teacher 
Infant/Toddler Room 1 
Lucy Brock Child Development Lab Program 
Appalachian State University 
ASU Box 32167 
Boone, NC 28608 
(828) 262-8540 (room) 

032117 BCC Meeting

151



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 11: 

BREAK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 12: 

CLOSED SESSION 
Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
Land Acquisition – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(5)(i) 

032117 BCC Meeting

152


	Tentative Agenda and Meeting Notice
	Approval of Minutes
	Approval of the March 21, 2017, Agenda
	Public Hearing to Allow Citizen Comment on Proposed Amendments To The Watauga County Sign Ordinance
	VAYA Health FY 2016 Audit Report
	Request for Use of County Space for Weekday Farmers’ Market
	Cooperative Extension Update
	Board of Equalization and Review Schedule
	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	A.  Proposed Contract for Public Safety and Emergency Communications Systems Comprehensive Study
	B.  Proposed Proclamation Naming April 1, 2017, As Watauga County Seed Library Day
	C.  Out-of-State Travel Requests
	D.  Boards and Commissions
	E.  Announcements

	Public Comment
	Break
	Closed Session



